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SFO Technologies Private Limited Phone :91 484 6614000
g (A NeST Group Company) Fax . : 91 484 2413053
Website : www.sfotechnologies.net

Email : contact@sfotechnologies.net
CIN  :U72900KL1990PTC005620
Registered office : Stone House, Market Road, Aluva - 683 101, Kerala, India
Corporate Office : Plot No.02, Cochin Special Economic Zone, Kakkanad — 682 037, Ernakulam, Kerala, India

SHORTER NOTICE OF 315T ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31% Annual General Meeting of SFO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, the 30" Day of November 2021, at 04:00 PM at the Registered Office
of the company at Stone House, Market Road, Aluva — 683 101, Ernakulam, Kerala to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31% March
2021, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon

b) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31 March
2021, together with the Report of the Auditors’ thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. Appointment of Mr. Althaaf Jehangir as Wholetime Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Mr. Althaaf Jehangir
(DIN:00006080), who was appointed as an Additional Director to the Board of the Company on 20" day
of November 2021 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the
Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the shareholders of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Althaaf Jehangir (DIN:00006080) as a Wholetime
Director of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from 30th day of November 2021”




“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Althaaf Jehangir
(DIN:00006080) shall be same as applicable to him as a part of his employment.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther, (DIN: 00002790), Managing Director
and Mr. Padmanabhan Kumaravel, Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally
authorized to file necessary returns/forms to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds
and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”

Alteration in Articles of Association of the Company

To alter the Articles of Association of the Company for adoption of new set of Articles of Association
in alignment with the Companies Act, 2013 and in this regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with
or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14, or any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, including any
modification(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the consent of the members
of the company be and is hereby accorded to substitute the existing Articles of Association of the
company with a new set of Articles of Association as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther, (DIN: 00002790), Managing Director
and Mr. Padmanabhan Kumaravel, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary or incidental in this regard to give effect to
the foregoing resolution including filing of all the necessary e-forms with the office of the Registrar of

Companies”

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : Aluva Padmanabhan Kumaravel
Date :30.11.2021 Company Secretary

Notes:

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote in the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy and vote on a poll instead of himself and such
proxy need not be a member of the company. Proxies in order to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
company before the commencement of the meeting.

(ii) Please note that the Company intends to make provision for shareholders of the Company, or their proxies, to participate in the
Annual General Meeting by way of video conferencing.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The explanatory statements are provided below for Item No. 2 and 3, though same were not strictly required
as per Section 102(1) of the Companies Act 2013:

ITEM NO.2

Mr. Althaaf Jehangir was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors with effect from
November 20, 2021 and in terms of the provisions of the Act read with relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, he holds office till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. The Company has received
notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Member proposing
the candidatures of Mr. Althaaf Jehangir for the office of Director of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 2(94) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Althaaf Jehangir is also appointed as a Whole -
Time Director of the Company, subject to the approval of shareholders, for period of 5 years with effect from
30" November 2021.

The Terms and conditions of employment and remuneration, as applicable to Mr. Althaaf Jehangir as a part
of his employment shall continue to be applicable to him as an appointment Whole-Time Director. The terms
and conditions of employment shall be open for inspection of members of the Company at the Registered
Office of the Company during the business hours i.e., 9.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 196 of the Act, appointment of Mr. Althaaf Jehangir as a Whole-
Time Director of the Company for a period of 5 years is placed before the members at this Annual General
Meeting.

The Board believes that the Company would be immensely benefited from the appointment of Mr. Althaaf
Jehangir as Whole-Time Director and he fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder, and the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set out at item No. 2 of the
Notice for the approval by the Members.

Mr. Althaaf Jehangir is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act
and has given his consent to act as a Director.

Except Mr. Althaaf Jehangir, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and/or their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at

Item No. 2.

ITEM NO.3

The Articles of Association of the Company was originally framed as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 and a new set of Articles were adopted as per the new provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Now
the Company wanted to alter the Articles of Association of the Company by modifying many of the articles.
The Board of Directors had a discussion on the matter and proposed to alter the Articles by adopting a new
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set of Articles. For the alteration, the consent of the Members of the Company is required as a Special
Resolution.

The Resolution at Item No. 3 of the Notice is set out as a Special Resolution for approval by the members in
terms of Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013.

A copy of the Articles of Association of the Company together with the proposed alterations would be
available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the Special Resolution as contained in the Notice.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives is concerned or
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.3.

By order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Place : Aluva Padmanabhan Kumaravel
Date :30.11.2021 Company Secretary




SFO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: Stone House, Market Road, Aluva — 683 101, Ernakulam, Kerala

PROXY FORM

31%t Annual General Meeting

(enter address), a member of SFO Technologies Private Limited, do hereby appoint Mr/Ms

F T T T T geee

(enter name)
(enter address), as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 31%' Annual
General Meeting of the company, to be held on Tuesday, the 30" day of November 2021, at 04:00

PM at the Registered Office of the company at Stone House, Market Road, Aluva-683 101,
Ernakulam, Kerala and at any adjournments thereof.

IN WITNESS whereof I/We set hands this

Folio No

No. of shared held : Please affix
Rs. 1.00 revenue stamp

Signature

(Signature of the shareholder across the stamp)

Note: Proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the company before the commencement of
the meeting.




@R

ROAD MAP TO THE VENUE
Aluva Metro Station

ODB(SI

Q Fedtech Centre

Q City Union Bank
@ reperaL Bank AT ) CentralBark @ Regency Plaza
ok 544 of India ATM
16110
3
FBOA Rd
a

Aneesh [
ppilly Bazar

The Alwaye Urban Bank
Stone House
FBOA Auditorium

rala Kitchen

Chamayam

Poorna Nagar Park
2o

alyd@em mwnad
o @O

AODBHEY
ETUOE.
Kerala Gramin Bank

a8 (Nodlerd
6N

Muncipal Building Q

B  United Bank of India

SINRS

Driving School

eewailoy’

<~\f\&,{05v Q
@

N
€ DBI

e[\n\\d
p(}Oﬂ °

A

F Bank
@"b

10 NO l\\

Aluva Municipality Shop @
Cum Godown Building

6 Bleniledng
@RERA...

Google

Mundopadath

Men's Hostel
O
Map data ®2018 Google India Terms Sendfeedback 50mi_




SFO Technologies Private Limited Phone:91 484 6614000
(A NeST Group Company) Fax :91 484 2413053
Website : www.sfotechnologies.net
Email : contact@sfotechnologies.net
CIN  :U72900KL1990PTC005620

Registered office : Stone House, Market Road, Aluva - 683 101, Kerala, India

Corporate Office : Plot No.02, Cochin Special Economic Zone, Kakkanad — 682 037, Ernakulam, Kerala, India

SHORTER NOTICE OF 315" ADJOURNED ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 3157 Adjourned Annual General Meeting of SFO TECHNOLOGIES
PRIVATE LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 28" day of February 2022, at 02:00 PM at the
Registered Office of the company at Stone House, Market Road, Aluva - 683101, Ernakulam, Kerala to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) Audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2021, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

You are requested to kindly attend the meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : Aluva Padmanabhan Kumaravel
Date :28.02.2022 Company Secretary

Notes:

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote in the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy and vote on a poll instead of himself and such proxy need not be
a member of the company. Proxies in order to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the company not less than 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting.

(ii) Please note that the Company intends to make provision for shareholders of the Company, or their proxies, to participate in the Annual General
Meeting by way of video conferencing.
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Phone:91 484 6614000
Fax :91484 2413053

Website : www.sfotechnologies.net
Email : contact@sfotechnologies.net
CIN  :U72900KL1990PTC005620
Registered office : Stone House, Market Road, Aluva - 683 101, Kerala, India
Corporate Office : Plot No.02, Cochin Special Economic Zone, Kakkanad — 682 037, Ernakulam, Kerala, India

SFO Technologies Private Limited

(A NeST Group Company)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2020-21
Dear Shareholders,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 31% Annual Report of your Company, SFO
TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED along with the audited accounts for the Financial Year ended 31%
March 2021.

(1) Financial Highlights

(Amount in Lakhs except per share data)

Consolidated
2021 2020

Standalone
2021

Particulars

2020

Revenue from Operations (Net) (1)

1,54,058

1,46,021

1,65,934

1,78,897

Material consumed (2)

98,371

100,615

1,00,997

1,15,290

Gross Profit (3) = (1)-(2)

Other Income

55,687
2,755
40,831
13,825
5,541
3,924
5,841
2,284
3,557

45,406
1,698
35,489
14,377
5,332
4,114
4,931
1,917
3,013

64,937
1,363
47,773
17,129
6,432
4242
6,455
2,721
3,734

63,607
1,797
48,176
22,047
7,216
4,962
9,869
2,289
7,581

Operating and other expenses

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax

Finance cost

Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Profit Before Tax (PBT)
Tax expense

Profit After Tax (PAT)

Share of loss attributable to minority
interest

Share of profits of associates
Net Profit

Earnings Per share-basic/diluted

(2) Results of operations

Total Revenue recorded for the year under review was Rs.1,56,813 Lakhs as against the revenue of Rs.
1,47,719 Lakhs in the previous year. Your company has achieved a Profit Before Tax of Rs.5,841
Lakhs as against Rs.4,930 Lakhs in the previous year. Total Profit After Tax for the year under report
is Rs.3,557 Lakhs as against the previous year figure of Rs.3,013 Lakhs.




Profit Before Tax (INR in Lakhs) Profit After Tax (INR in Lakhs)

E Profit Before Tax (INR in Lakhs) = Profit After Tax (INR in Lakhs)
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Business

Your company has recorded continuous growth in its business during the year under review and has
successfully added new customers including global electronic leaders, in the sectors including

Healthcare, Industrial, Defence, Transportation, Automotive. Your company, through its inherent

strengths and capabilities is confident of achieving increased pace in sales and profitability in the
upcoming years also.

Material Changes Affecting the Financial Position of the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which occurred during the period between the end of the financial year to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this report.

For the preparation of financial statements, our Auditors have adopted Ind AS in the previous financial
year i.e., FY 2019-20 and the current financial year i.e., FY 2020-21, instead of Indian GAAP
(Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) as used in the past previous years.




Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the
design or operation were observed.

Dividend

To conserve the financial resources, the Board of Directors is not recommending any Dividend.

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

There were no transactions requiring the company to transfer any amounts to IEPF during previous
years and hence the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

Directors

The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed Mr. Althaaf Jehangir (DIN:00006080), as an
Additional Director to the Board of the Company on the Board Meeting held on 20™ day of November
2021 to hold office until the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. The
Members of the Company had appointed him as the Wholetime Director of the Company in the Annual
General Meeting held on 30" November 2021.

As on the date of this report, the directors of the company are as under:

No. Name of Directors Designation
Dr. Javad K Hassan Chairman & Director
Mr. Nagoor Rawther Jehangir Managing Director
Mr. Althaaf Jehangir Wholetime Director

Company’s Policy relating to Directors’ appointment, Payment of Remuneration and discharge
of their duties

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are not applicable to the Company.

Declaration of Independent Directors

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding the appointment of Independent
Directors do not apply to the company and hence the declaration required under section 149(6) is not
applicable.

Shares

During the year under review, the company has undertaken following transactions:

Increase in Share Buy Back of Sweat Equity | Bonus Shares Employees Stock
Capital Securities Option Plan

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(12) Annual Return

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure A and is attached
to this Report.

Number of Board Meetings

The Company has conducted 17 (Seventeen) Board Meetings during the financial year under review.
The attendance of Directors for the Board meetings are as under:

Mr. Nagoor Jehangir
Rawther
v

Z
e

Date Dr. Javad K Hassan

C\

30 April 2020
21 May 2020
01 June 2020
01 July 2020
07 July 2020
09 September 2020
24 September 2020
09 Octo 2020
28 October 2020
06 November 2020
18 November 2020
21 December 2020
31 December 2020
20 January 2021
18 February 2021
27 February 2021
29 March 2021

e
oy B= N1 RN BT o RV NS RS ) e

—_
\S)

—_
(O8]

._
o

1
9]

—
o)}

RN AN RN RV N RV ENENENENANENENAN
S ENEN RN EVENENENENENENENENENENAN

—_
=

[v' : Attended / X: Not attended / NA: Not Applicable]
(14) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186 are provided under note 7 and 8 of
the audited financials of the company.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with Related Parties

Details provided in Annexure B in AOC-2 format pursuant to clause 2(h) of sub section (3) of section
134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review.




(17) Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant
to Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(A) Conservation of Energy

Your company has taken adequate steps for effective utilization of energy at all levels of
production process.

Technology Absorption

Your company is constantly upgrading the technological innovations into the production
process. The company, in accordance with the latest technology sets process, systems and put
efforts to provide best price, which aids the company retain its premium customers and getting
orders from the existing and new customers.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Foreign exchange earned and used for the year ended on 31% March 2021: (Rs. Lakhs)

March 2021 March 2020

Foreign exchange earnings 66,250 76,235

Foreign exchange outgo 199 602

Statutory Auditors

M/s. MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 105047W) having office
at 05" Floor, Main Building, Guna Complex, New No. 443 & 445, Old No. 304, 305, Mount Road,
Teynapet, Chennai-600018 India has been appointed as the Auditors and acts as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company till the conclusion of 32™ Annual General Meeting of the Company, on such
remuneration including out of pocket expenses and other expenses as may be mutually agreed by and
between the Board of Directors and the Auditors.

Explanation or Comments on Qualifications, Reservations or Adverse Remarks or Disclaimers
made by the Auditors in their Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.

Secretarial Audit

Your directors had appointed M/s. Satheesh and Remesh, Company Secretaries in Practice, 2™ Floor,
“Krishna Apartments”, M G Road, (Behind Duroflex Showroom), Ambady Lane, Ravipuram,
Ernakualm — 682 016, Kerala, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of your Company. They have
submitted Secretarial Audit Report for the year 2020-21. A copy of the Secretarial Audit Report issued
in form MR-3 by M/s. Satheesh and Remesh, Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as an Annexure C to
this report. It may be observed that there no adverse remarks made by them.




Disclosure of Composition of Audit Committee and Providing Vigil Mechanism

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 regarding constitition of Audit Committee is not
applicable to the Company.

Further, section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 regarding Vigil Mechanism is applicable to the Company and
acordingly a “Vigil Policy’ approved by the Board of Directors of the company is in place. The Board
has nominated Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther, Managing Director of the Company to implemnet vigil
mechanism in the Company. The Company has appointed Mr. M Ramachandran, FCA as the
Vilgilance Officer for a period of One (1) year with effect from 09 July 2021.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has in force a “Risk Management Policy” aproved by the members of the Board of
Directors of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

SFO Technologies Private Limited is committed to serve the society as a token of its gratitude for the
continuous support extended to it by the society. Further, section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 also
mandates certain group of companies to adopt a policy for Corporate Social Responsibility. Company
has in place, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy adopted by the Board of Directors of the
company. The details are available on the website of the Company.

The composition of the CSR Commiittee is as under:

No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther Chairman of the CSR Committee
2 Dr. Javad K Hassan Member

The contents of the CSR policy and initiatives taken by the Company on Corporate Social
Responsibility during the year 2020-21 is attached as Annexure D to this Report.

Research and Development (JKH Technology Centre)

The R&D division of the company has been undertaking Concept to Product activities, which are
becoming potential for volume manufacturing business. The Value engineering activities are also
acting as a catalyst for the manufacturing opportunities from customer. R&D centre of the Company
has bagged some R&D projects from healthcare customers, where novel ideas are being tried out.

Technology Road Map

The technology road map adopted by the company will establish your Company, a leader in medical
electronics, automotive, aerospace and embedded system software products and services during the
next few years.




(26) Subsidiaries

The list of Subsidiary Companies of the Company is as under:

NeST Hi-Tek Park Private Limited, India
Ray-Hans Precision Tools Private Limited, India
NeST Digital Private Limited (Formerly known as NeST Information Technologies Private
Limited), India
4. ICAM Solution Private Limited, India
5. SFO Technologies Corporation, Wisconsin, USA

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient
features of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is provided at
Annexure E.

(27) Directors Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submits its responsibility Statement:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period.

(¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) The directors had devised proper Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the company and
that such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and operating effectively.

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars of Employees

Details of employees in the company receiving remuneration of Rs. 60 Lakhs or more or employed for
part of the financial year and in receipt of Rs.5 Lakhs or more a month, under Rule 5 (2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided as
Annexure F.
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(29) Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and company’s operations in future

Information required under sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention, prohibition
& redressal) Act, 2014

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal Act, 2013.
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off
during the year 2020-21:

(a) No of complaints received
(b)  No of complaints disposed off
(c) Number of cases pending for more than 90 days

(d)  Number of workshops or awareness programmes against sexual
harassment carried out
(e) Nature of action taken by the employer or District Officer

Appreciation

We thank our clients, vendors, authorities of Cochin Special Economic Zone, Customs and Central

Excise departments, Income Tax Authorities, Registrar of Companies-Kerala and our Bankers for their

continued support during the year. We place on record our appreciation of the contribution made by
the employees at all levels. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, co-operation
and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SFO Technologies Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Nagoor Jehangir Rawther Althaaf Jehangir
Managing Director Wholetime Director
(DIN: 00002790) (DIN: 00006080)

Place : Aluva
Date  : 28™ February 2022




Annexure A
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
(As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020)

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN U72900KL1990PTC005620

Registration Date 08/02/1990

Name of the Company SFO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Category/Sub-category of the Company | Private Limited company

Address of the Registered office & Stone House, Market Road, Aluva — 683 101,
contact details Ernakulam, Kerala, India, Ph: 0484-6614300

Whether listed company No

KFin Technologies Private Limited

Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Name, Address & contact details of the Financial District, Nanakramguda,

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Serilingampally, Hyderabad

Ph: +91-40-23312454

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing

10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

SI. No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service company

PCB Assembling 261 85.99




III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
[No. of Companies for which information is being filled: 05]

Holding/ % of
CIN/GLN Subsidiary / | shares
Associate held

Name and Address of the
Company

Applicable
Section

Nest Hi-Tek Park Private
Limited,

U70102KL2007PTC
Stone House, Market Road, 020633
Aluva - 683101, Ernakulam,
Kerala, INDIA

SFO Technologies
Corporation,

Subsidiary

Foreign

200 South Executive Drive, Suite Subsidiary
101  Brookfield, @ Wisconsin
53005, United States of America
NeST Digital Private Limited
(Formerly NeST Information
Technologies Private Limited)

U72200KL1998PTCO
VI/165 Mackar Manzil, 12602
Thynothil Road, Aluva
Ernakulam, Kerala - 683101,
INDIA

Ray-Hans Precision Tools
Private Limited

Subsidiary

U29220KL2006PTCO
Stone House, Market Road, 19920
Aluva - 683101, Ernakulam,
Kerala, INDIA

ICAM Solution Private
Limited

Subsidiary

U72900KA2000PTCO
113/A Bommasandra industrial 26932

Area Hosur Road Bangalore,
Karnataka - 560099, INDIA

Subsidiary




SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

A.

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year [As on 31-March-2020]

on 31-March-2021]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year [As

Demat

Physical

% of
Total
Shares

Total

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

A. PROMOTERS

(1) INDIAN

a) Individual/
HUF

2,50,141

2,50,141

2,50,141

2,50,141

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

¢) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Sub Total (A) (1)

2,50,141

2,50,141

2,50,141

2,50,141

(2) FOREIGN

(a) NRIs-
Individuals

(b) Other
Individuals

4,65,950

4,65,950

4,65,950

4,65,950

© Bodies Corp.

(d) Banks/FI

(e) Any Other

Sub Total (A) (2)

4,65,950

4,65,950

4,65,950

4,65,950

Total
shareholding of
Promoter
(A)=(A)1+(A)2

7,16,091

7,16,091

7,16,091

7,16,091

. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies




g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)
Sub-total
B)D):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
it) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in

excess of Rs 1
lakh

Others (specify)

Sub Total (B) = 1,99,498 | 1,99.498 | 21.79 1,99,498 | 1,99,498
B)(1) +(B)(2)

1,98,358 | 1,98,358 1,98,358 | 1,98,358

(C) SHARES HELD BY CUSTODIAN FOR GDRS AND ADRS

Grand Total

(AB+O) 9,15589 | 9,15,589 9,15,589 | 9,15,589

Shareholding of Promoter-

Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
year shareholding
Shareholder’s during the
Name No. of % of total % of Shares No. of % of total % of Shares year
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of the Pledged /
the encumbered to company encumbered to
company total shares total shares
Dr. Javad K 4,65,950 50.89 Nil 4,65,950 50.89 Nil
Hassan
Mr. Nagoor 2,50,141 27.32 Nil 2,50,141 27.32 Nil
Jehangir Rawther




D. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

At the beginning of the year 7,16,091 78.21

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the end of the year

7,16,091 78.21

E. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):

SN For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year - - -

Cumulative Shareholding during the
year
% of total

No. of shares

Mrs. Nishi Jehangir

1,39,860

15.28

Mr. Althaaf Jehangir

58,498

6.39

M/s NTC Softech India P Ltd

1000

0.11

Mr. A M Igbal

140

0.01

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

At the end of the year

Same as that of beginning of the year

F.

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN

Shareholding of each Directors and
each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

At the beginning of the year

7,16,091

78.21

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year

7,16,091




G. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not
due for payment (INR in Lakhs)

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year

1) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

ii1) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i-+ii+iii)

31,771

Change in Indebtedness during the fi

nancial year

* Addition

872

* Reduction

Net Change

872

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

1) Principal Amount

32,643

i1) Interest due but not paid

ii1) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i-+ii-+iii)

32,643

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL -

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Amt Rs.)

SN. Particulars of Remuneration

Mr. Nagoor Jehangir
Rawther

Total Amount

Gross salary

Nil

(a) Salary as per provisions containe
the Income-tax Act, 1961

d in section 17(1) of

6,00,00,000

6,00,00,000

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil

Nil

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec
tax Act, 1961

tion 17(3) Income-

Nil

Nil

Stock Option

Nil

Nil

Sweat Equity

Nil

Nil

Commission (- As % of profit/- Others, specify...

Nil

Nil

Others, please specify

Nil

Nil

Total (A)

6,00,00,000

6,00,00,000

Ceiling as per the Act

NA

Nil




B. Remuneration to other directors: NA

SN. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount

Independent Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Fee for attending board committee meetings Nil Nil Nil Nil
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (1) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Other Non-Executive Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil
Fee for attending board committee meetings Nil Nil Nil Nil
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (B)=(1+2) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Managerial Nil Nil Nil Nil
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Nil Nil Nil Nil

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / MANAGER / WTD (Amt. )

No | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CS CFO

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

46,66,841 i 46,66,841

Nil i Nil

Nil i Nil

Nil i Nil

Sweat Equity i Nil i Nil
Commission i Nil i Nil

- as % of profit i Nil i Nil
others, specify... i Nil i Nil
Others, please specify i Nil i Nil
Total i 46,66,841 i 46,66,841




VI. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty | Authority Appeal made,

Companies Act | Description / Punishment/ [RD /NCLT/ | if any (give Details)
Compounding COURT]
fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty i NA
Punishment i NA

Compounding i NA
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil NA
Punishment Nil NA
Compounding Nil NA
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil NA
Punishment Nil NA
Compounding Nil NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

SFO Technologies Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Nagoor Jehangir Rawther Althaaf Jehangir
Managing Director Wholetime Director
(DIN: 00002790) (DIN: 00006080)

Place : Aluva
Date  : 28" February 2022




Annexure B

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO BY
THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH TRANSACTIONS UNDER THIRD
PROVISO THERETO

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s
length basis
Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including
the value, if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or

transactions
Date(s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any:

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as
required under first proviso to section 188

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at | Sales, Purchase and Services to
arm’s length basis Related Party Company

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Refer note below.

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions Sale, purchase and services

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions During the financial year
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including | -
the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

® Amount paid as advances, if any

Note: List of related parties with whom/which the company had transactions:

Description of Relationship Name of Related Party

Wholly owned subsidiaries NeST Hi-Tek Park Private Limited
SFO Technologies Corp USA

NeST Digital Private Limited (Formerly known as NeST
Information Technologies Private Limited)

Ray-Hans Precision Tools Private Limited

ICAM Solution Private Limited

Enterprises under the direct / indirect control of NeST Information Technologies (LLC), Dubai
the Company NeST Information Technologies (Aus), Australia
SFO Tech Inc., USA
Qual-Pro Corporation

Person controlling the Company Mr. Javad K. Hassan

Key Management Personnel - Managing Director ~ Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther

Relatives of Key Management Personnel Mrs. Nishi Jehangir, Wife of Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther
Mrs. Naazneen Jehangir, D/o Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther
Mr. Althaaf Jehangir, Son of Mr. Nagoor Jehangir Rawther
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Enterprises under the control of the Person
controlling the Company

Opterna AM, USA

Opterna Europe, UK

Opterna AB, Sweden

Opterna MEA Fz Co., Dubai

Opterna, Africa

Ashling Microsystems Limited, Ireland

Auriga NeST MEA Fz Co., Dubai

NeST Europe Limited, Europe

NeST Technologies Corporation, USA

Nestrides, Japan

JKH Associates LLC, USA

SFO Technologies Inc. USA

E Cell Technologies, USA

NTC Softech India Private Limited

Javad K Hassan Consultancy Private Limited

Javad K Hassan Associates Fz Co.

SFO Technologies Northlight

JAVAD K HASSAN ASSOCIATES LLC

Saba Powderdex Private Limited

Opterna Technologies Private Limited

Parnitha Holdings

ECell Healthcare Private Limited

Allied Network Solutions India Private Limited

Opterna Arabia

Opterna WGD AG

Enterprises under the control of Managing
Director

NeST Technology Enabled Services Private Limited

NeST Infrasoft Limited

NeST Realties India Private Limited

NJ Business Corporation

NeST Foods & Beverages Corporation

Nenmany Agro Mills Private Limited

NeST Research & Development Centre (Registered Society)

Naz Rice and Foods Private Limited

Q Life Consumer Products Private Limited

Royal MalabarFoods Private Limited

NeST Agro Foods (Proprietorship)

N J Enterprises (Proprietorship)

NeST Institute of Fibre Optics Technologies Private Limited

SFO Technologies Solutions Private Limited

NeST Connectivity Corporation

NeST Connectivity Solutions Private Limited

NeST Connectivity Solutions Pte Limited

SFO Technologies Pte, Singapore

Ray-Hans Cables and Magnetics Private Limited

Ray-Hans Technologies Private Limited

Ray-Hans Luminaries Private Limited

Photon Data Links Private Limited

Green House Cardamom Marketing India Private Limited

NEID Engineering & Infrastructure Development Private
Limited




Details of Transactions with Related Party in the Ordinary course of business for the year

ended March 31, 2021

Subsidiaries

Purchase of Goods/ Services
Sale of Goods/ Services
Loans Given

Loans repaid

Purchase of Investment
Trade receivables

Loans & Advances

Trade Payables

Advance to Supplier

Enterprises under the control of the person
controlling the Company

Purchase of Goods/ Services

Sale of Goods/ Services

Trade receivables

Loans & Advances

Trade Payables

Key Managerial Personnel — MD

Loans given
Loans Repaid
Remuneration paid
Purchase of Land
Loans & Advances

Enterprises under the Control of MD
Purchase of Goods/ Services

Sale of Goods/ Services

Trade receivables

Trade Payables

Advance to Supplier

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
Purchase of Goods/Services
Remuneration Paid

Advance to Supplier

Amount INR in Lakhs

As at 31.03.2021

1,427
88

3,295
1,112

1,776
8,683
236
73

139
1,368
153
512
32

2,669

(2,565)

600
875
2,201

592
3,053
2,480
1,323
58

As at 31.03.2020

1,115
81
768
1,634

1,272
6,531
190
49




Annexure C

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SFO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
STONE HOUSE, MARKET ROAD

ALUVA ERNAKULAM Kerala 683101 India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by SFO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our limited verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and
returns filed with regulatory authorities and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during
the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 (‘Audit Period’) complied with statutory provisions
listed hereunder:

We further report that maintenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books, filing of
Forms and Returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other records is
responsibility of management and of the Company, our responsibility is to verify the content of
the documents produced before us, make objective evaluation of the content in respect of
compliance and report thereon. We have examined on test check basis, the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and produced
before us for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, as per the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made there under to
the extent of its applicability; Not Applicable




(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to the extent
of its applicability; Not Applicable

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent of its applicability:-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not applicable since the Company is not equity listed
Company

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; Not applicable since the Company is not equity listed Company

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009: Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not applicable since the
Company is not a listed Company

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008: Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; : Not
Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 Not applicable since the Company is not a listed Company: Not Applicable; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998: Not Applicable
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(ii)  Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and guidelines issued under the act as applicable
to the Company

Based on the aforesaid information provided by the Company, we report that during the financial
year under report, the Company complied with the provisions of the above-mentioned Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc except delay in filing some of Statutory returns/forms
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with various Statutory authorities. As informed and declaration given by the Company, no statutory
body/ authorities imposed any fine or penalty on the Company under the various provisions of the
applicable regulations.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non- Executive Directors. No changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors took place during the period under review.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and the Company has
developed a reasonable system for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting. The company has conducted meaningful evaluation of board of directors of the Company
as required under the Act.

Majority decision is carried through, and proper system is in place which facilitates / ensure to
capture and record, the dissenting member’s views, if any, as part of the Minutes

Based on the representation made by the Company and its Officers explaining us in respect
of internal systems and mechanism established by the Company which ensures compliances of
other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company, We report that the company has
adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there are no specific events / actions having a

major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
etc, referred to above.

For Satheesh and Remesh,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Remesh B
Partner

CP No. 6730

Date: 30.11.2021

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE
A’ and forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,

SFO TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
STONE HOUSE, MARKET ROAD

ALUVA ERNAKULAM Kerala 683101 India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test-check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Whereever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules,
Regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on test-check basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability ofthe Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For Satheesh and Remesh,
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Remesh B
Partner
CP No. 6730




Annexure D

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

Overview

SFO Technologies Private Limited (SFO), the flagship company of NeST Group of Companies
is conscious of the need and responsibility to serve the society in which it exists. SFO
acknowledges the contribution of the society in providing an environment to create wealth,
market, employment, prosperity and all such other key factors to successfully run a business.
SFO, is committed to serve the society, as a token of its gratitude for the continuous support
of the society. SFO’s focus has always been on the sustainable development of the society;
through this policy, SFO attempt to focus more in serving the society at large.

Composition of the CSR Committee

The Committee comprises of (i) Dr. Javad K Hassan, Chairman of the Company and (i1) Mr.
Nagoor Rawther Jehangir, Managing Director; Mr. Nagoor Rawther Jehangir acts as the

Chairman of the committee.

Average Net profit of the company for the last 03 financial years : . 5,275 Lakhs

Prescribed CSR Expenditure/ Gross Amount required to be : . 105.51 Lakhs
Spend by the Company (2% of the amount as in item 3 above)

Details of CSR spent during the financial year : . 34.00 Lakh
(Measures for reducing inequalities faced by the socially and

economically backward groups/Contribution towards Charitable

activities)

Total amount to be spent for the financial year : . 105.51 Lakhs

Amount unspent if any : . 71.51 Lakh




(¢) Manner in which amount spent during the financial year is

detailed below:

(Amt. Rs. Lakhs)

2

3)

4)

)

(6)

()

(8)

CSR Project or
activity identified

Sector
in which
the
project
is
covered

Projects or
programs (i)
local area or
other (2)
specify the
state and
district
where
products or
programs
were
undertaken

Amount
outlay
(budget)
project or
program
wise
(Amt. Rs)

Amount
spent on the
projects or
programs
Sub heads:
(1) District
expenditure
on projects
or programs
()

overheads:

Cumul
ative
expen
diture
up to
the
reporti
ng
period

Amount
spent direct
or through
implementi
ng agency

Measures for
reducing
inequalities faced
by the socially and
economically
backward
groups/Contributi
on towards
Charitable

activities

Charity

Local area

34,00,000/-

34,00,000/-

34,00,000/-

34,00,000/-

34,00,000/-

34,00,000/-

6. Reason for not spending, if any.

The Company had spent the maximum amount through the Measures for reducing inequalities faced
by the socially and economically backward groups/Contribution towards Charitable activities. The
Board had decided to transfer the balance unspent amount to the Funds as Specified under Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to the CSR Provision.

We, the members of the CSR Committee hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring
of the CSR policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the company.

Sd/-

Nagoor Jehangir Rawther

Managing Director

(Chairman of the CSR Committee)

Sd/-

Javad K Hassan
Member-CSR Committee
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Annexure E

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl. No 1

Name of the subsidiary Nest Hi-Tek Park Private Limited
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting NA
period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of INR
foreign subsidiaries.
Share capital %215,000,000/-
Reserves & surplus (%13,98,73,439/-)
Total assets 358,72,83,287/-
Total Liabilities 358,72,83,287/-
Investments -
Turnover %61,58,400/-
Profit before taxation (R2,92,65,291/-)
Provision for taxation 264,77,076/-
Profit after taxation (23,57,42,367/-)
Proposed Dividend -
% of shareholding 100% held by SFO Technologies P Ltd

Sl. No 2

Name of the subsidiary SFO Technologies Corporation
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting NA
period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of USD
foreign subsidiaries.
Share capital $ 50,000/-
Reserves & surplus/ Retained Earnings $67,417/-
Current Assets $ 28,70,016/-
Current Liabilities $27,55,517/-
Investments 0
Turnover $ 4,99,852/-
Profit before taxation $ 19,036/-
Provision for taxation ($ 8,566/-)
Profit after taxation/ Net Income $10,470/-
Proposed Dividend -
% of shareholding 100% held by SFO Technologies P Ltd
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S1. No

3

Name of the subsidiary

NeST Digital Private Limited (Formerly
NeST Information Technologies Private
Limited)

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting
period

NA

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries.

INR

Share capital

X1,34,000/-

Reserves & surplus

324,22,86,662/-

Total assets

%46,36,67,022/-

Total Liabilities

%46,36,67,022/-

Investments

%99,01,490/-

Turnover

%59,49,05,109/-

Profit before taxation

%10,81,72,556/-

Provision for taxation

32,71,94,128/-

Profit after taxation

38,09,78,428/-

Proposed Dividend

% of shareholding

100% held by SFO Technologies P Ltd

S1. No

4

Name of the subsidiary

Ray-Hans Precision Tools Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting
period

NA

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries.

INR

Share capital

%2,50,00,000/-

Reserves & surplus

(X15,13,94,628/-)

Total assets

266,15,03,075/-

Total Liabilities

266,15,03,075/-

Investments

334,21,55,042/-

Turnover

%22,67,67,719/-

Profit before taxation

(34,97,02,262/-)

Provision for taxation

358,30,626/-

Profit after taxation

(35,55,32,888/-)

Proposed Dividend

% of shareholding

100% held by SFO Technologies P Ltd

S1. No

5

Name of the subsidiary

ICAM Solution Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting
period

NA

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries.

INR

Share capital

%33,25,500/-

Reserves & surplus

X10,07,54,732/-




Total assets 339,48,63,197/-
Total Liabilities 339,48,63,197/-
Investments -
10 | Turnover 347,13,44,528/-

11 | Profit before taxation %1,52,70,003/-

12 | Provision for taxation %35,90,588/-

13 | Profit after taxation %1,16,79,415/-

14 | Proposed Dividend -

15 | % of shareholding 100% held by SFO Technologies P Ltd

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : Nil

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

1 | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2 | Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding %

Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet
Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation

1. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

For SFO Technologies Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Nagoor Jehangir Rawther Althaaf Jehangir Padmanabhan Kumaravel
Managing Director Wholetime Director Company Secretary




Annexure F

Particulars of Employees under Rule 5 (1) and 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013

Name & Remuneration Nature of Qualification, Date of Age Last % of Whether any
designation (Rs.) employment Experience commencement employment | equity relative is a
of employment shares | director/manager
in the company

Nagoor
Jehangir
Rawther

Dr. Javad K
Hassan, Chairman
. of the company is
6,00,00,000/- Permanent Graduation 01/11/2006 the brother of Mr.
Nagoor Jehangir
Rawther

(Managing
Director)




Floor 5, Main Building, Guna Complex

5 New No. 443 & 445, Old No. 304 & 305, Anna Salai
M S KA & ASSOC] ates Teynampet, Chennai 600018, INDIA
Chartered Accountants Tel: + 91 44 6131 0200

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of SFO Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SFO Technologies Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates, which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated
state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31, 2021, of consolidated profit, consolidated
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India (“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

3 <
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group and its Associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate entity are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associate entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 23,161 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of Rs. 13,408 lakhs and net cash
flows amounting to Rs.1,531 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s
share of net profit of Rs. 138 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of 1 associate, whose financial statement have not
been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate entity, is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors.
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b. Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding
Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside
India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting
principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the
Holding Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of
such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate entity- Refer Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group and its associate entity did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in
India.
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2. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 197
of the Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable to the Group as it is a private Company.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Guutis X
Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner

Membership No. 29409
UDIN: 22029409ADVOLS5278

Place: Chennai
Date: February 28, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SFO Technologies Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associate entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates entity to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Geetha Jeyakumar

Partner

Membership No. 29409

UDIN: 22029409ADVOLS5278

Place: Chennai
Date: February 28, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SFO Technologies Private Limited

[Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of SFO Technologies Private Limited on the
consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of SFO Technologies Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary companies and its associate company which are companies incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
company, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements
criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company which are
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
company which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to four
subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of
the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner

Membership No. 29409
UDIN: 22029409ADVOLS5278

Place: Chennai
Date: February 28, 2022
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SFO Technologies Private Limited
Consotidated Balance Sheet as st 31 March 2021
{Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4A 20,377 20,020
Right of Use Asset 48 6,126 4,678
Capital work-In-progress 3,175 1,320
Goodwitl ] 4,731 4,731
Other intangible assets 5 838 762
Intangible asset under development 3,945 3,577
Financlal assets
Investments 7 4,267 4,348
Loans 8 4,057 3,663
Qther financial assets 9 1,836 263
Other Non-Current assets 10 1,370 2,535
Total non-current assets 50,722 46,595
Current assets
inventories " 38,508 50,084
Einancial assets
Investments 7 &1 43
Trade receivables 12 41,467 29,086
Cash and cash equivatents 13 6,299 4,818
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 14 2,528 1,308
Other financial assets 15 3,103 2,997
Current tax assets 16 b o
Other current assets 16 11,568 13,385
Total current assets 1,02,531 1,014,727
Total assets 1,53,253 1,48,322
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capitatl i7 916 916
Other equity 18 59,623 55,891
Equity attributable to owners of the company 60,539 56,807
Nan- controlling interests 18 - .
Liabilities
Non-current Habilities
Emancial abllittes ;
Borrowings 19 5,603 2,511
Lease tabilities 48 3,469 3,436
Deferred tax tabRity 34 2,330 1916
Employee benefit obligations 0 2,048 1,756
Total nof-current Habititles 13,450 9,619
Current Habilities
Einancial lfsbilties
Barrowings 21 28,272 30,330
Lease tiabRities 48 1,313 1,336
Trade payables 22
f)total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,206 34
ifjtotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
)em«pﬁse and s:ull enterprise B 40,072
Other financial abilities 3 4,765 3,303
Other current liabilities 4 4,160 1,12
Employee benefit obligations 0 2 64
Current tax tabfiitles (net) 5 3,253 1,608
Total current Habitities 79,264 21,896
Totat tiabilities 92,714 91,915
Total equity and tiabilitles 4,53,253 1,48,322
Summary of sigaificant accounting poticies 1-3
The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the C financial
In terms of our report attached
For M5KA B Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants / 0 Technologles Private Limited
Firm Registration Mo.:105047W / Chd: U72900KL1990PTLC! 20
Aottio ™ ‘;
Gestha Jeyakumar \\ 1&‘. \ B K. Padmanabhan
Partner S Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 029409 /DLUPbOOOZ?‘JO ! Membership No: F&985
Place: Chennai Place: Kochi

Date: February 28, 2022 Date: February 28, 2022




SFO Technologies Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Amount in takhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year endad
Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income
Revenue from operations 26 1,65,934 1,78,897
Other income 27 1,363 1,797
Total Income 1,67,297 1,80,694
Expenses
Cost of materiat cansumed 28 1,00,997 1,15,290
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 29 1,536 {359)
Employee benefits expense 30 25,595 27,833
Finance costs kil 6,432 7,216
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 4,242 4,91
Other expenses -z} 22,178 20,345
Total expenses 1,60,980 1,75,286
Profit before share of p {loss) from ciate and tax exp 6,317 5,408
Share of profit from associates (Net) 138 232
Profit before exceptional items and tax 6,455 5,640
Exceptional llem 3
{a) Galn on loss of controt interest in subsidiary - 4,229
Profit before tax 6,455 9,869
Tax expanse
{a) Current tax 34 2,307 1,465
{b) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge M 414 824
Total tax expense 2,721 2,289
Profit for the year 3,734 7,580
Other comprehensive income (net of tax expense
Items that will not be reclassified to Consolidated of profit ar lossin
subsequent periods :
Net (loss}/gain on FYTOC) equity Securities 76 (131)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 15) [568)
Income tax on above (z0) 244
ftems that will be reclassified to C lidated of profit or loss in
subsequent perfods :
Exch es the financial statements of forefgn operations (84) (469}
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax “3) {924)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,691 6,656
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 3,734 7,59
Non-controlling interests . {10)
Other comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company (43) (924)
Non-controlling Interest . -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 3,691 6,666
Non-controtling interest - {10)
Earnings per share {nominal value of INR 100 (March 31, 2020: INR 100)]
Basic earnings per share {INR} 35 408 828
Diluted eamings per share {INR) 35 408 828
Summary of significant accounting policies 13
The accompanying notes are an integral pant of the G i financial
in terms of our report attached
For MSKA B Assoclates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants hnologles Private Limited
Firm Registration No.:105047W CIN; UAZ900KL1990PTCQO5620
Q o &
Geetha Jeyakumar h r K. Padmanabhan
Partner Dingctor Company Secretary
Membership No: 029409 DIN: DODD60BO Membership No: F6985

Place; Chennai Place:Kochi
Date: February 28, 2022 Date: February 28, 2022




SFO Technologies Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before exceptional items and tax 6,455 5,641
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 4,246 4,973
Finance cost 5,369 7,216
Interest income {980} (1,055)
(Gain)/ loss on sale of fixed assets {6) )
Exchange differences in translating the fii fal of foreign 2 (469)
operations
Unrealised foreign exchange toss (net) 136 2,029
Provision for doubtful debts 365 -
Re-measurement of actuariat (gain}/loss 15 568
{Gain)/oss on FYTOCI equity Securities (net) (76) 131
Share of profit from associates (Net) (138) (232)
Operating loss before working capitat changes 15,429 18,799
Changes in working capftal
Increase/{Decrease} in Trade Payables (7,072) 2,450
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories 11,576 (16,353)
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables (12,103} 10,829
Increase in other current liabilities 2,490 246
increase/ (Decrease) in Loans 321 {955)
Increase in provisions 286 (589)
Decrease in Hon-Current assets 1,538 1,014
Decrease in ather financial lizbilities (65) {693)
Ircrease in other financial assets 179 {659)
(increase)/Decrease fn other current assets 1,909 {1,137)
(140} 320
(increase)/Decrease in Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent
Cash generated used In operations 14,348 13,273
Income taxes paid {net of refund) {730) 319
Net cash flows from operating activities (&) 13,613 12,954
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {5,205) (4,538)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 16 15
{Purchase) / Sate of Investments k) {203}
Maturity/ (Investment) in Fixed Deposit {1,075) {7)
Interest received 101 1,055
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (5,880} (3,678)
Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from Long term Borrowings 4,158 1,979
Repayment of Short term Borrowings - 45
Ret increase / decrease in Short term Borrowings 2,117} .
Interest repayment of Lease Liabilities (605) (693)
Principat repayment of Lease Liabilities {3,051) {747)
Interest paid {4,720) (7,209)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (6,335) !5 624)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,403 2,652
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,814 2,141
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivatents 19 22

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,236 4,814




SFO Technologles Private Limited
Consolldated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Amount fn INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 13)

Balances with banks
On current accounts 5,857 4,497
Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 426 287
Cash on hand 16 34
Less:Bank Overdraft (63) 4)
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 6,236 4,814
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the tidated financlat
In terms of our report attached
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants 8| hnologies Private Limited

Firm Registration No,:105047W IN: U72400K11990P TCO05620

g“my

K. Padmanabhan

Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner Mana rector Company Secretary
Membership Nao: 029409 N: 00006080 DiN: 00006080 Membership No: F6985

Place: Kochi
Date: February 28, 2022

Place: Chehnai
Date: February 28, 2022
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SFO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 313t March, 2021
(Ameount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Generat Information
SFO Technologies Private Limited is a private limited Company domiclled in India and was incorporated on February 8, 1950 under the of the Ct Act, 1956 in
Indla. Its registered and principal office of business ks located at XIX/346, Stone House, Market Road, Aliva - 683 101 (hereinafier Halding Company’}. The Holding Company has strong
presence fn niche technology areas Like Dightal Electronics, Fiber Optics, Radio Frequency & Wireless, Cable & Wire Harness, Sheet Metal & Plastics and Aerospace Indintry. The Holding
Company has manufacturing facilities at Cochin and Bangatore and a branch at Japan. The Holding Company has 7 subsidiaries and one associate. { Holding Company & subsidiaries herefnafter
will ba referred as * Group™)

The Conslidated financial statements comprise the Consotidated Balance Sheet, the Conslidated Statement of Profit and Loss Other Comp Income), the Consol Cash
Flow and the € of Changes in Equity (“financial statements”)

The Corsatidated Ind AS financial statements of the group were approved in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on February 23, 2022.

1.1 Statement of Compllance with IndAS

These financiat have been prep: in with Indlanho:mndngsundardsundul notified under Section 123 of the Companles Act, 2013 (the "Act”} read with the
[« (Indlan ) Rules, 2015 and G {indian Rules, 2016 along with relevant amendment rules issued thereafter and other
relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable.

Accounting policies have been consistertly appiied to all the years preserted excapt where a newty ksued accounting standand is initfally adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change In the accounting policy hitherto in we.

1.2 Bash for Consclidation

The financial i the financial of the group and entiles controlied by the Holding Company and fts subsidiaries, Control i achieved when the
group:

« has pawer over the investee;

« Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from tts involvement with the investee; and

« has the ability to use fts power to affect its retumns.

The emity reassesses whether or not 1t controls an fnvestee If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the entity has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the frvestee when the voting rights are sufficient to give & the practical ability to direct the
relevant activitles of the (rvestee unitateratly. The entity considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the group’s voting rights in an fnvestes are sufficient to
give ft power, including:

« the stze of the entity’s holding of woting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

« potential voting rigits held by the entity, other vote holders or ather parties;

= rights artsing from other contractual arrangements; and

+ any additlonal facts and circumstances that indicate that the entity has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need 10 be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the entity obtains control over the subsidiary and by applicable Ind A). The (air vatue of any investment retained In the former subs(diary at the
date when control 15 lost is regarded as the fair value on initiat G for subseq g Under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cost on inRtial recognition of an fnvestment
in an assoclate or a joint venture.

1.3 The subsidiary companies and associate which are included in the consolidation and the proup's effective holdings therein are as follaws:

% of holding
Country
Name of the Company’s of Relationship Parent 35 March , 2021 31 March, 2020
Subsidiaries
) Nest Hi-Tck Park Private Limited india Wholly Owned Subsidfary SFO Technologies Private Limited 100 100
it}  SFO Technologics Corporation UsA Wholly Owned Subsidiary SFO Technologles Private Limfted 100 100
Nest Digital Private Limticd
] (Formerly, Net Infortnation Techuologies India Wholly Owned Subsidiary SFO Technologies Private Limited 100 100
Private Limited)
i) Ray-hans Preckfon Tools Private Limited India Wholly Owned Subsidiary SFO Technologies Private Limited 100 100
v} ICAM Solution Private Limited India Whodly Gwned Subsidiary SFO Technologles Private Limited 100 100
Nest [nformation Technologles {Aus) Pty. Nest Information Technologies Private
vi} Limited Australia Wholly Owned Subsldiary Umited 100 100
Vill Nest Yechnologles LLC o Subsidfary Neslldmﬁoa;edm“’d gies Private
Untted Arab Mest information Technologtes Private
viif) Nest Information Technologles LLC Emfrates Assoclate Limited
) SFOTechinc usa Yoty Ouned SUbSHIATY T payhans Precision Tools Private Limitad 10 100
X} Quatbro Corporation usa S e scoetdiary Wi $FO Tech Inc 0 100
i} "Qual-Pro Corporation (Thailand) Limited Thattand m“:mou\ ied Subsidiary Uil Qual+Pro Corporation 10 100
financial have been prepared using uriform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circusmstances and are presented to the extent

mﬂe.hﬂnmmuhm‘sm%&dﬂnuem

2 Significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policfes adopted by the group are as under:




SFO Technotogles Private Limited
Notes forming part of the G Financist for the ywar ended 315t March, 2021
{Amount i INR Lakhs, unless ctherwise stated)

2.1 Basts of Proparation of Financlal Statements

(a) Basts of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual bask, except for the following materiat flems that have baen measured at fair value as required by
relevant Ind AS:-

f)Certain financial assats and liabilities measured at falr vatue {refer accounting policy on financial instruments)

) Goodwill on business combination s recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition of control

1} Defined Benefit Plan-Plan measured at fafr vatue.

Historical cost b generally based on the fair value of the consideration gfven in exchange for goods and senvices. Fair value 5 the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or pald to
transfer a liabflity in an orderly transaction between market at the date, reg; of whether that price is directly observable or estimated tsing another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an assat or a Uiability, the group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or tiabiiity i market participants would take those characteristics
into accoumt when pricing the asset or tability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is detennined on such a basks,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have soma
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. In addition, for financial reporting purposes, falr value measurements are
categorized Into Levet 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the falr value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in
fts entirety, which are described as follows:

« Levet 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for fdentical assets or Habfifties that the entity can access at the measurement date;

« Level 2 inguts are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, efther directly or Indirectly; and

= Levet 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or UabRity.

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (Rs.} and ail amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakis, unless otherwise Jndicated.

(b) Use of estirutes and judgements
The p of financtal In with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and kiabilities as at
the Balance Sheet date, reported amaunt of revenue and expenses for the year and of 25 3 the Batance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in
the acgrouping financial statements mbasedupm themgemem‘s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual resulis could differ
from these and on a periodic basis. ta # any, are recogs in the year In which the esthmates are
revised and [n any future years lffected.l(eysumul nstimmon of Uncertalnty as at \he date of financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment tg the carrying amounts of
asets and iabRlities within the next financial year, & in respect of the follawing:

i) Taxes

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred taxt assets that can be recognized, based upon the Uikety timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. Significant judgrents are required n determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be pald/ recovered for
uncertain tax positions.

{H) Defined Benetit { y and Leave

The cost of the defined benefft phnssu:h a3 gratuity and leave encashment are determined Using actuarial valuatioms, An actuartal valuation nvolves making various assumptions that may
ditfer from actual developments fn the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salzry increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invotved in the
valuation and fts long-term nature, a defined benefht obligation is highly sensittve to changes in these are at each rep g date.

The principal assumptions are the discount and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on g bends at the date with a term that
matches that of Habitities. The mortality rate & based on publicty avaltable mortality tables, These mortality tables tend to change only at faterval in respanse to demographic changes. Salary
fncrease rate takes Into account of Inflation, senlorfty, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basks. For detafls refer Note 42,

(i) asset under r

The group ble asset under devel, for a project in whth the policy. Initial lisatéon of costs is based on management’s judgement that
ol 1 and o ility s d, usuaily when a product development praject has reached a defined g to an hed project g model. At

31 March 2020, the carTying amount of itsed gible asset under mm}!?ﬁhﬂsl?‘mmmliﬂwﬂ

(i) Impairment of Goodwill and Non-Financlal assets
Int the amount of each asset or cash-generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount
them. Estimation uncertainty relates to abaut future results and the of a suitable discount rate.

2.2 Current and non-current classification
The group presents assets and liabilitfes in the balance sheet based on cumrent/ non-current classification. An asset fs treated as cument when it is:

+ Expected to be realized or o be sold or h normat cycle
« Held primarily for the purpose of trading
« Expected to be realized within twelve months after the repatﬁng
« Cash or cash unless d from being w;sedmseule-(hbﬂﬂylwathasttwe(ve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classitied as non-current.

A tiability fs corrent when:

« ft &5 expected to be settled fn nommal operating cycle,

1t & held primarily for the purpose of trading,

« it fs due to be sattied within twelve months after the reporting perfod, or

« There f5 no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twetve months after the reporting period.

The group classifies all sther Uabilities as non-current.

The operating cycie s the time between the acquisttion of assets for processing and their realsatéon in cash and cash eq The group has S twelve months as its operating
cycle.




SFO Technologles Private Limited
Notes forming part of the C d Financhal for the year ended 313t March, 2029
{Amount i INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

2,3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historial cost less d depreciation, and loss, if any. cost comprises of the purchase price including
duties and non-refundable taxes, and directly attributable expenses incurred to bring the asset to the location and condition trecessary for It to be capable of being operated in the manner
intended by management. Machinzry spares which can be wed only in connection with an ftem of Property, Plant and Equipment and whose use fs expected to be iregular are capitalised and
depreciated over the useful tife of the principal item of the relevant assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying Bmount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when R & probable that future economic benefits assoctated with the
Jtem will flow to the group and the cost of the ftem can be measured relfably. The carrylng amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repairs and are charged to of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incumed.

An ftem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from fts use or dfsposal. The gains or losses arlsing from derecognftion
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognbsed fn the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Advances pald lowards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each batance sheet date fs classified as capital ac: under other assets and the cost of
assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives
The group deprecfates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the strafght line method. The estimated useful lives of assets as specified in Schedule 1) are 25

Tollows:
Property, plant and equip Usefut Life
Leasehold improvemnent® Lease period
Buflding 30 years
Plant & Machinery™ 15 years
Fumfture and Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5 years )
Motor Vehicle 8 years
and Equip: 10 years

Computer Equipment:

-Servers 5 years

Endmerde\dcessuchls.dnh'.upa nptops etc.
* Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period, whkhmrrespomtwnhﬂ\emelullwesoithenssm,

“Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain ftems of property plant and equipment are being depreclated over usefut lives different from the prescribed useful livey

under 1l to the C Act, 2013, believes that such estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect falr approximation of the period over which the assets are tikely
1o be used. Therefore, group assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditfons of the asset,
past history of changes, end support, ete.: Useftt life of Tools and Jigs Included In Generat Plant and Machinery
to be 5 years

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment s provided on pro-rata basts from the date of Dep on sal tion from property plant and equipment &
provided up o the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are d by 3 P ds with carrying amount. These are

included in Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Other lncome’,

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financlal year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arsing from a business combination that are not dually identified and Goodwill &5 caried at cost fess
accumulated tmpairment losses, Refer Note & for a description of impairment testing procedures.

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the assets and

contingent Babfitties of the acquired enthty at the date of acquisition
Gaodwill shall be tested for impalrment annually and whenever there is an indication that It might be impaired

2.5 Intangidle Assets

gible Assets under
Thempewmb&md#hgm:rdmplmwmﬁumInmeyearlnwhkhlheymmned phase exp are inttially das assets under
until the phase upon which the amount 5 capttatised as intangible asset.
intangible assets acquired sep: are on inftial at cost. Foliowing inRial recogsition, intangfble assets are carrled at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
dated losses. le assets are d on a straight line basts over the estimuted usafut life of 3 to 4 years

2.6 tmpairment of NomFinanclal Assets

Assessment & done at each batance sheet date as to whether there & any indication that an asset {tangible and intangible) may be fmpafred. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the
frecoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit Is made, Recoverable amount s higher of an asset's or cath generating Unit’s net seliing price and its value in use, Value fn use s the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arse from the continuing use of an asset and from #ts disposal at the end of fts useful life. For the purpose of assessing impaiment,
the recoverable amount 1 determmined for an individual asset, tniess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, The
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows (rom continlting use that are [argely independent of the cash Inflows from other assets or proups of assets, Is considered asa
cash generating unft {CGU). An asset or CGU whose cartying value exceeds tts recoverable amount s considered impaired and is written down to Hs recaverable amount. Assessment & atso

done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indi that an loss d for an asset in prior accoumiting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.
An impatrment loss s reversed to the extent that the asset's cantying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been d #f no loss had pr ly
been recognised.

2.7 Foreign Currency Transactions

{a) Functional and presentation currency

Itams included in the Tinanclal statements are measured using the curmency of the primary economic environment in which the entity aperates (‘the functional cumency’). The financial
stateinents are presented in Indian rupee (INR], which is the group’s functional and presentation currency.

CHENNAI %2

‘J' )




5FQ Technologies Private Limited
Hotes forming part of the C Financial for the year ended 11st March, 2021
{Amount in (NR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{b) Transactions and balances
On Inftial recognition, all forelgn cumency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Tunctional cusrency and the foreign currency

2t the date of the transaction, Gals/Losses asksing out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the date and date are d fn the of Profit

and Loss.

All monetary assets and Uabfiftles in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and the exch are in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Nor- ftems that are d in terms of historical cost in a forefgn currency are transtated wing the exchange rates at the dates of the fnitial transactions.

2.8 Fair value measurement

Fair value fs the price that would be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a llabfifty In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The falr value
is based on the p that the to sell the asset or transfer the Hability takes place efther:

> In the principal market for the aset or Hiabilky, or
» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability accessible to the group.

The group Uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are avaftable to measure falr value, maximizing the tse of relevant observable
inputs and mimmt2ing the use of unobservable inputs. The group’s management determines the policles and procedures for fai value suchy as

All assets and liabRities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as foltows, based on the lowest level
fnput that s significant to the falr value measurement a5 a whole:

> Level 7 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in actfve markets for identical assets or lHabilities

B Level 2 — Valuation techriques for which the lowest levet input that fs significant to the fair value measurement ks directly or indirectly abservable

# Level 3 —Valuation techaiques for which the lowest level input that fs significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

2.9 Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and reweards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delfvery of the goods to Customers.
Revenue from the sale of goods i measured at the fair value of the consideration recefvad or recefvable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of exclse dity and net of reluns and
allowsnces, trade discolrits and volume rebates, value added taxes, goods and service tax (GST) and amounts cotlected on behalf of third parties.

Rendering of services
Service revenue is recognized under ‘percentage of completion method”. Under this method, service revenue fs recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the accounting period in which
the work Is performed. Service costs are also recognised a5 an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the accounting period in which the work to which they refate is performed.

However, any expected excess of total service costs over total service revenue & recognised as an expense from contracts are recognised pro-rata over
the period of the contract.

Toollng, design and devel charges are don of designs, p ypes etc. by

Interest lncome

Interest fncome s recognized when it is probable that the economic benefis will flow to the group and the amaunt of income can be measured relfably. Interest ncome b accrued an a time
basls, by to the principal and at the effective fnterest rate which is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net canvying amount on inftfat recognition. Interest Income s included under the head ‘other income’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend income
Dividend income on trvestments §s accounted when the right to recefve the dividend §s established, which s generally when shareholders approve the dividend, Dividend income s included
under the head ~Other tncome* in the statement of profit and toss account.

2.10 Taxes
Income tax expense comprise current tax expenss and the net change in the deferred tax asset or llabitity during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit
and Toss, except when they relate to #ems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

Current tax assets and Uablitles are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used ta compute the amount afe those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax assets and tax Habflities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and tntends either to
settle on a net basts, or to realize the asset and sattle the liabllty simultanecusty.

Deferred tax

Defetred income tax is provided in full, 1sing the balance sheet approach, on temporary dif arhiing between the tax bases of assers and Uabilities and their canying amounts in
financfal statements. Deferred income tax fs also not accountad for If 1t arises from fnftial recognition of an asset or Uability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither acoounting profit nor taxable prafit (tax loss). Deferred income tax & detenmined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the year and are expected (o apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liabRity fs settled.

Deferred tax assets are ised for all deductibl porary diffe and unused tax lossas enly if R fs probable that Tuture taxable amounts will be avallable to utfilze those terpovrary
differences and losses.
Management periodically evaluates posttions taken fn tax returns with respect to sittations in which applicable tax regulation £ subject to it P vhere

appropriate on the basts of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred tax assets and lisbflities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabiiitfes and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority.

Appendix C 10 Ind AS 12 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes. The interpretation & to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, umused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there §s uncertainty over incosne tax treatments under Ind AS 12. The adoption of Appendix C to ind AS 12 did not have any material impact on
the standatone financizl statements of the group.
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2.11 Assets classified as held for sale

The group classifies non-current assets {or disposal group) as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use.

The criteria for held for sale Classification s regarded met only when the assets {or disposal group) &s avaitable for immediate sale in fts present conditfon, subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sates of such assets (or dispesal group), its sate is highly probable; and It wilt genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The group treats sale of the amet {or disposal group) to be
highly probable when:

» The appropriate level of maragement ts committed to a plan to selt the asset (or disposal group),

> An active programmed to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initlated (if applicable),

P The asset (o disposal group) s being actively marketed for sale at a price that fs reasonable in relation to fis current fair value,

» The sale s expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification , and

» Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it fs unlikely that significant changes to the ptan will be made or that the plan will ba withdrawn.

Non-currenit assets (or disposal group} held Tor sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs Lo sell. Assets and liabilitles (or disposal group) classified as
held for sate are presented separately in the bslance sheet,

Propetty, plant and equip and le assets once cl d as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

2.2 Leases
The group evaluates each cortract or arrangement, whether it quatiffes as lease as defined under Ind AS 116,

Group as a fessee

The group enters #nto an arrangement for lease of land, buildings, plant and machinery and vehicles. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed period but may have extersion o
termination options, The group assesses, whether the contract 5, or contains, a lease, at its inception. A contract 5, or contatns, a lease If the contract conveys the right to

3) control the use of an tdentified asset,

b) obtatn substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identifled asset, and

¢} direct the use of the fdentified asset.

The group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a tease, together with perfods covered by an option to extend the lease, whers the group s reasonably certatn to
exercise that option. The group at the commencement of the fease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (Rol) asset at cost and corresponding lease Liabflity, except for leases with tenm of less
than twelve months {short term leases) and low-value assets. For these short term and low value lzases, the group the lease a5 an op expense on a straight-line
basts over the lease term. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises the amount of the fnitfal measurement of the lease liabfifty, any lease payments made at or before the inception date
of the lease, plus ary inltiat direct costs, less any lease incentives recetved.

Subsequently, the right-of-use assets are measured at cost lese any losses, if any. The right-of-use assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful urwm;m ~of-ise asset, The estimated useful life of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basts as those of property, ptant and equipment.

The group applies Ind AS 36 10 determine whether an RoU asset ts impaired and accounts for any fd L loss as described in the s of non-financial assets below. For
leasellabﬂmesnthemmnzmafdelnse,!hegrwpmemmthelemllabﬂhynmepnsemvaluenfmelempaymmsthnmmtpaidanhnt&te.mlemwmmsm
discounted using the interest rate fmplick in the lease, i that rate can be readity determined, H that rate fs not readily d d, the lease are d using the incremental

borrowing rate that the group would have 1o pay to borrow funds, including the consideration of factors such as the nature of the asset and location, coltateral, market terms and conditlons,
as n a similar

After the commencement date, the amount of lease Uabt [ d to reflect the of Interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The group recognizes the amount of
the re-measurement of lease Hability as an adjustment to the right-pf-use assets. Where the camrying amount of the right-of-use asset s reduced to 2ero and there fs a further reduction in the
measurement of the leasa Hability, the group recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. Lease tiabllity payments are classified as cash used fn
financing activitles in the statement of cash flows.

The proup asa lessor
Leases under which the group is a lessor are dlassified as finance or operating leases, Lease comtracts where all the risks and rewards are substantially transferred to the lessee, the lease
contracts are classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For leases under which the group is an intermediate lessor, the group accounts for the head-lease

and the sub-lease as two separate The sub-1 15 Turther cl. d efther as a finance lease or an operating lease by reference to the RoU asset artsing from the head-lease,
2.13 Inventories
Stores and spares, packing materials are valued at or below cost. Raw materfats and other fiventories are valued at lower of cost and net value. Net reatizable value rep the

estimated of imventories less ali estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. The method of determination of cast of varfous categories of inventories s as follows:
1. Stores and spares and packing materfals - First-in-First-out basks. Cost includes purchase cost and other attributable expenses.
2. Raw matertal - First-in-First-out basks. Cost Includes purchase cost and other attributable expenses.
3 FhlshedgoodsandWork in-process - Fh!-'nﬂlxtnutblsts, which comprises of direct material costs, direct wages and applicable overheads.
fon of on d on the basts of s estimate based on demand and market of the inventortes.

2.14 Provisions and contingent liabllicles

Frovisions are recognized when there ks a present obligation as a result of a past event, it s probable that an outflow of resources embodying econoinic benefits will be required to settle the
cblfgation and there s a rellable estimate of the amount of the oblig; Provisions are d st the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance sheet date.

1f the effect of the time value of money s materfal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the Wability. When discounting
Is used, the Increase in the provision due to the passage of time f recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilitles are disclosed when there is 3 possible obiigation arising from past events, the exkstence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or
more uncertain fiture everts not wholly within the control of the group or a present cbligation that arfses from past events where it Is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. The group does not recognize a contingent liabfifty but discloses &t In the financial statements, unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

2.15 Cash and cash
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits net of bank averdraft with an original maturky of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the plwposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks and shortsterm deposhts net of bank overdraft.
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2.16 Financial instruments
A financial fnstrument ks any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financiat liabRity o7 equity Instrument of another entfty.

Financial assets

{i) initial recognition and measurement

At fnftial recognition, fmanciat asset fs measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair vatue through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(1) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are dlassified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or

b) at fair value through other comprehemsive income; or

c) at falr value through profit or loss,

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Amortized cost:
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flove represent solely payments of principal and tnterest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from
these financial assets 1s Included n finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

»f ue r 'otn:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash ftows and for selling the financizl assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and fnterest, are meassured
at fair value through other comprehensive Income {FVOCH). Movements in the carying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of fmpairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and forefgn exchange gains and losses which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognlzed, the cumudative gain or loss previously
mmdmwsmﬂwfmmwwmumdﬁvﬂluﬂmsmdrecognlz:d(nnthergalnsl[lnes) Interest income from these financiat assets is included in other Incorme
using the effective interest rate method.

Ealr vatue through prefit or loxs (FYTPL):
Assets that do not meet the criterfa for amorttzed cost or FYOCH are measured at fair value through profil or loss. Interest income from these financial assets & Included in other income.

Equity instruments:

All equity Investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
cnmbhmbntowhkhIndASiD!appliesm:hssmedlsatFVTPLForallotherequnylmumnu,memmaynwwmmabledmmtommhm}mmmhemlnmme
subsequent changes in the (air value. The group makes such election on an by basls. The cl. s made on inftiat recognition and & irevocable.

1f the group decides to ciassify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then alt falr value changes on the are gnized in the OCI. There & no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. szwr,ﬂeywmmfndnmhﬂvepinorlmmmmmw

Equity fnstruments included within the FYTPL category are measuned at falr vatue with all changes recognized in the profit and toss.

{15} Impatrment of financiat assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial instruments, the group applies expected credit loss [ECL) model for and itlon of loss on f(nancial assets that are

measured at amortized cost and FYOCL.

For recognition of fmpasrment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the group detenmines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initfal recognition. i
credit risk has not increased significantty, 12-month ECL & wsed to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, fetime ECL s used. H In subsequent years,
credit quatity of the instrument dmproves such that there & no longer a significant increase #n credit Tisk since Inktiat recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impaimment loss
allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulking from all possitle default events over the expected life of & financial instrument. The 12 month ECL fs a portion of the tifetime ECL
which results from defaull events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL Is the diffe between all mhﬂmmatmducmmegmplnmdamemmumtonnxtandaumecamﬂows&mmezmﬂyexpemwr«emﬂe. atl shortfalls),
discounted at the orfginal EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity & required to consider all contractual terms of the financial etc.) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. However, In rare cases when the expected life of the financial tnstrument cannot be estimated reliably, mentluemkykreqmdmme:he
remaining comtractual term of the financial instrument.

in general, it is presumed that credtt risk has sigr since fnitlal .1 1f the payment ts more than 30 days past due.

ECL toss. {or reversal) during the year & as i o n the of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured
at amortized cost s presented as an aliowance, 1.e. as an integral pact of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The atlowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write off criterfa, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

{) Derecogrition of finsncial aysets

A financial asset &5 derecognized only when

2) the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial asset ks transferred or

b} retains the contractual rights to recebve the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes & contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

in and
On nftial these are d 2t cost. will be tested for impatrment ff any.

{b) Financial Habitities
{1} Initial recognition and measurement
Financial are at inftiat a5 flnancial HabRities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortlzed cost, as appropriate.

Al financial liabititles are recognized initially at fair value and, In the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction tosts.

() Subsequent measurement

The of financfal depends on thelr classification, as described below:

inanciol liabilitles at fair h it or
Financial Hablttles at hlr value through profit or loss include financial liabilities hetd for trading and financlat upon Inftial a5 at fair vatue through profR or
foss. are also as held for trading unless they are desigr s hedging Gajns or losses on Uablities held for trading are

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Loans ond borrowings

After inftial recognition, interest-bearing loans and are sub ty d at d cost using the EIR method. Galns and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the Uabflities are derecogrized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost fs calculated by takdng into account any discount or presaium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization &5 included as finance costs i the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Derecognition

A financlal ltabllity fs derecogntzed when the obligation under the Wabltity ts discharged or cancelled or explres. When an exfsting financiat (fablifty is replaced by ancther from the same
{ender on substantally different tenms, or the terms of an existing llabflity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification fs treated as the derecognition of the original Vabltity
and the recognition of a new lability, The difference in the respective carying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profft and Loss as finance costs.

() Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative s a ¢ of a hybrid bined| that also includes a non-derivative hast comtract - with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
fnstrument vary in a way similsr to a standalone derfvative. Dertvatives embedded in all other host contract are sep: If the and risks of the embedded dertvative
are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fak value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts
are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs If there s efther a change In the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of & financial
asset out of the {xir value through profit or loss,

{d) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabititics are offset and the net amount s reported in the balance sheet where there s a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there fs an
intention to settle on a net basis or reatfze the asset and seqtle the Uability The legalty right must not be contingent on futre events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and In the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

2.17 Employee Benefits
{a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salarles, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be ssttled wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the

related service are d in respect of services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts expected ta be paid when the Uabfiities are settted. The liablitles
are d as curent emgl benefit in the balance sheet.
{b} Other tong: ! benefit obtiga
(1) Defined contrtbution plan
Fund: C towards p fund i made to the regulatory authorities, where the group has no further obtigations. Such benefits are classitied as Defined Contribution

Schmvuasdtgmmdoesnotunwaumﬂnbugam apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee’s State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees’ state insurance scheme 18 made to the regulatory authortties, where the group has no further obligations. Such benefits
are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the group does not canty any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basts which are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Less.

(1) Defined beneTit plans
Gratuity: The group provides for gratuity, 2 defined benefit plan (the ‘Gratulty Plan”) cwerlng eiigible errploye:s i accordance with the Payment of GratsRy Act, 1972 The Gratufty Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested at , death, of an amount based on the respective emplayee’s salary. The group’s

tabflfry s actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit cr:dlt methed) at the end ol each year. A:tuv‘!a\ losses/gains are recognized in the other comprehensive income in the year in
which they arise.

[~ d d nhsenm.whichmewecudmbemﬁedwmhdwltmnummmﬂmuuendoﬂheyearmtmatzd-sslmunnzrnpluyee
bene(its. The obligation towards the same 15 at the cost of d s the | amount d to be pakd as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

 ab which are exp tnbemlledwmshedbeymdﬂnmmhvmheendefmeywendaremnedasotherbngurmewplayeebeneﬁts.'rhe
group's Uabitity ks actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial . 9 are inthe of profit and loss in the year
in which they arise,
Leaves under define benefi plans can be anly on of service by

2.18 Contributed equity
Equity shares are classifled as equity share capital.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Earnings Per Share

Baskc carnings per share Is calculated by dividing the net profit or toss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the welghted average number of equity shates outstanding during the
year, Eamings considered in ascertaiming the group’s eamings per share is the net profit or Loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year,
The weighted average nuimber of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presentad s adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares, that have changed the number of equRy shares ding, without a P g change in

For the purpose of calaulating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year to equity holders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year 1s adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potertial equity shares.
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2.20 Segment Reporting

The group identifles primary segments based on the domfnant source, nature of risks and returms and the internal are the
segments for which separate financlal information ts avalable and for which operating profft / toss amounts are evaluated mguhrly by the executive »amgement in deciding how to atlocate
resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilitles have
been identifled to segments on the basis of their to the op g of the segment.

[ revenue s d on the basts of transactions wikch are primarily determnined based on market / falr value factors.

81

Revenue, expenses, assets and Uabflitles which relate to the group as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basks have been Included under “unallocated revenue 7
expenses / assets / |labilities”.

2.21 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquishtion, cmsuu:tlmarpmducmno(anassenhn!aks-mmhlpeﬂodo!thwlogetmndyfornslm:ndedmemaddedm
the cost of those assats, umtil such time as the assets are substantiatly ready for their intended use or sale. Other g Costs are d as In the period in which they
are incurred. Bormowing costs Include exchange differences arising from foreign currency bormowings to the extent they are r:gnrded 25 an adjustment ta the interest cost.

3 New dards and diment to existing dards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(*MCA®) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards, There ks o such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2021,

Recent Pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {**MCA’’) through a notif! ded Schedule HI of the C Act, 2013, The o revise Diviston I, Il and 1) of
Schedute It and are applicable from Apri 1, 2021, Key amendments relating to Division Il which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Compardes {Indlan
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

Lease Uabilities should be separatety disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished a5 current or non-cusrent.
- Certain 1 disck in the of changes in equity such as changes In aquity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current

period.

- Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.,

« Spectifed format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in- and asset under
-lfagmuphasnmaedrmdsfau!q:eclfkpupmeIamuw-shmmdfmnbadsandfhmdmmbm then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

- Specific disclosure under ‘additional regutatory such as compliance with approved schemes of with number of layers of companies, thie deeds of
immovable property not hetd in name of group, Loarsand:denwpmmrs. directors, key managerial parsonnel (KMP) and related parties, detalls of benamt property held atc.
Statement of profit and loss:

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed Income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information” in the notes
forming part of the standalone financial statements.
The amendments ate extensive and the group will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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4B The details of the right-of-use asset held by the Group is as follows:

Amount

Gross Carrying Value :
As at April 01, 2019 -
Effect of transition to Ind AS 116 6,140
Additions during the year 72
As at March 31, 2020 6,242
Additions during the year 3,298
Disposals during the year 550
As at March 31, 2021 8,960
Accumulated depreciation:
As at April 01, 2019 i
Charge for the year 1,534
As at March 31, 2020 1,534
Charge for the year i 1,595
Disposals 295
As at March 31, 2021 2,834
Net block ==
As at March 31, 2020 4,678
As at March 31, 2021 6,124
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Lease liabilities as at April 1 4,772 5,939
Additions 1,542 68
Interest on lease liabilities 604 733
Payments 2,135 1,969
As at March 31 4,782 4,772
Current 1,313 1,336
Non-current 3,469 3,436
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are given as below: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within one year 1,313 1,341
After one year but not more than five years 3,774 2,987
More than five years 222 971
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 1,593 1,587
Interest expense on lease liabilities 605 929
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 136 338

Total amount recognised in statement profit or loss 2,334 2,855
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6 Goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill on business purchase has suffered any impairment on an annual basis as at year end. The
recaverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management: An average of the range of
each assumption used is mentioned below:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Growth rate 10.50% 40%
Operating margins 6.18% 5.77%
Discount rate (Pre-tax) 12.50% 12.5%

.

As at March 31, 2021, the Group assessed the carrying value of its goodwill along with the carrying value of related CGUs,
based on future operational plan and projected cash flows. There is no impairment noted based on the assessment performed
by the management. Management has also performed sensitivity analysis around the significant assumptions used and
concluded that no reasonable possible changes in key assumptions would cause the recoverabte amount of the CGU lower than
the carrying amount of CGU.




SFO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7 Financial Assets- Investments
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

lnvestment in equity instruments {fully pald-up)

Quoted equity shares at fair value through other comprehensive income
696 {As at March 31, 2020: 696) shares of €10 each, fully pafd-up, in Indian Bank 1 0

330 {As at March 31, 2020; 330) shares of 10 each, fully paid-up, in State Bank of India (consequent to 1 1
merger of State Bank of Travancore to State Bank of India where 22 shares of State Bank of India were
offered for every 10 shares held in State Bank of Travancore}

8,865 [As at March 31, 2020: 8,865) shares of X2 each fully paid-up, in HDFC Bank Limited 132 76

Unquoted equity shares at Cost

Others :-

1125 (As at March 31, 2020 : 1125) shares of USD 1 each, fully paid-up, in SFO 3,412 3,422

Tech Inc, USA.

147 (As at March 31, 2020: 147) shares of AED 1000 each, fully paid-up, in Nest 27 27

Information Technologies LLC, United Arab Emirates

Add : Share of Profit from Assoclate 471 334
4,054 3,860

Unquoted equity shares at Fair Value through other comprehensive income

750,000 {As at March 31, 2020: 750,000) shares of ¥10 each, fully paid-up, in Lakeshore Hospital and 213 211
Research Centre Ltd.

Sub total unquoted investments at FYTOCI 213 214
Investment in others at fair value

Investment in in unsecured loan of Other affiliates S 79
Total Non-current investments 4,267 4,350

7 Financiat Assets- Investments (Continued..)

~ Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) (Refer foot note 1) 61 49
Investments at fair value through OC! (fully paid) 348 289
Investment at Cost 3,919 3,782
Investment in unsecured {oan Other affiliates - 279

4,328 4,399
Current 61 49
Non- Current 4,267 4,350

4,328 4,399
Aggregate book value of:
Quoted investments 6 6
Unquoted investments 3,523 3,523
Aggregate market value of:
Quoted fnvestments 134 7
Unquoted investments 3,661 3,659
Faootnotes:
1. Details of investments in Mutual Funds {Quoted) designated at FYTOC):

Number of units Amount
Face As at As at As at As at
Particulars Vatue March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
(in Rs.) 2021 2020 2021 2020

KCICH Prudential infrastructure Fund - Growth Plan 10 34,941 34,941 21 1"
Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund-Growth Plan 10 7,688 7,688 40 38

42,629 42,629 61 49
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SFO Technologles Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Firancial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{(Amount 1n INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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As at As at
Non- current financlal assets - Loans (at amortised cost) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to related party 1,854 1,414
Loan to director 2,203 2,249
4,057 3,663
Terms of loan
(i) Loan to related parties is loan provided to group company's at terms and conditions and repayable within March
31, 2023.
(ii)’ Vide the approval of the Shareholders of the Company vide Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated February 24,
2018, pursuant to the provisions of Section 185(1){a)(i) and Section 185(1}{a){ii) of the Companies Act, 2013, A Loan
Scheme was approved to be given to the Managing Director of the Holding. The loan carried an interest rate of
9.35% per annum and is repayable within February 28, 2023.
As at As at
Other financial assets (at amortised cost) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
In Fixed deposit accounts with maturity for more 706 o
than 12 months from balance sheet date.
Security Deposit 1,130 961
1,836 961
As at As at
Uthernon;current-azsers 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advance 977 605
Prepaid rent - 1,628
Others (advances) 393 302
Total other non-current other assets 1,370 2,535
As at As at
Inventories 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
At lower of cost and net realizable value
Raw material 27,412 29,426
Raw material in transit 935 9,189
Work in progress 6,459 6,725
Finished goods in stock 2,952 4,222
Store and spares parts including packing materiat 750 522
38,508 50,084
Trade receivable As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Secured, considered good
Unsecured
-Considered good 41,832 29,086
Less-Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (365) .
41,467 29,086
Further classified as:
Receivable from related parties (Refer Note 41) 3,077 3,743
Receivable from others 38,390 25,343
41,467 29,086
All amounts are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of
fair value.
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SFO Technologies Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at

13 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 5,857 4,497
Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 426 287
Cash on hand 16 34

6,299 4,818

Cash balances with bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are
made for varying periods of between one to three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at

Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 5,857 4,497
Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 426 287
Cash on hand 16 34
6,299 4,818

Less: Bank overdrafts (Refer note 21) 63 4
6,236 4,814

14 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent 31 March 2021

31 March 2020

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but

{ess than 12 months from balance sheet date 1REE 1.5/
Restricted Cash** 1,063 921
2,525 1,308

**The Group has restricted cash consisting of Margin money on letter of credit and bank guarantees

As at

15 Other financial assets (at amortised cost) 31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Unbilled Revenue 120 1,541
Security Deposit 1,983 1,456
2,103 2,997
As at As at
16 Other current assets 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to Supplier 5,002 5,352
Advances to Employees 123 138
Balance with Government Authority 3,347 4,060
Prepaid Expenses 257 269
MEIS Incentive Receivable 2,308 2,966
Script for Customns 526 526
Duty Drawback Receivable 2 2
Prepaid Rent 3 72
Total 11,568 13,385
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(a)

(b)

(c)

{d)

SFO Technologies Private Limited

lidated Financial 5

Notes forming part of the C

Share capftal
Equity shares Capital

Authorized shares:

32,50,000 (March 31,2020: 32,50,000) Ordinary equity shares of ¥100/- each

1,000 (March 31,2020: 1,000) Series A equity shares of %100/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid up shares;

9,15,589(March 31, 2020: 9,15,589) equity shares of ¥100/- each

Total

Reconcillation of equity shares outstanding at the

beginning and at the end of the year

Dutstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued / (redemimed) during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :-
The Holding Company had fssued two classes of equity shares, viz., Ordinary equity share and Serfes A equity share, bath having face value of ¥ 100 per
share. The halder of Ordinary equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The holder of Series A equity share s entitled to voting rights equivalent to

such percentage of the total voting capital of the Company as §s rep|

for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
3,520 3,520
1 1
3,511 3,521
916 916
916 916
31-Mar-2021 31 march 2020
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
9,15,589 916 9,15,589 e
9,15,58% 916 9,15,58% 916

d by the Compulsority Convertible Debentures in the fully diluted share capital

of the Holding Company, The Hotding Company declares and pays dividends in indfan rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors has to
be approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Graup, the hotders of Ordinary and Series A equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Group, after
settling the dues of preferential and other creditors as per priority. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

sharehotders.

Details of shares hetd by sharehotders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Holding Company

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Name of the shareholder Nter of Ay % of holding in Number of shares % of holding in
the class the class

Ordinary equity shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid

Mr. Javad K. Hassan 4,65,950 51 4,658,950 51
Mr, N. Jehangir 2,50,141 7 2,50,141 27
Ms. Nishi Jehangir 1,39,850 15 1,39,860 15
Mr. Atthaaf Jehangir 58,498 [ 58,498 &

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations recetved from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ovmership of shares.

No class of shares have been bought back by the Holding Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year end.

Particutars Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Year ended 31 | Year ended 31
March, 2021 March, 2020 March, 2019 March, 2018 March, 2017
Ordinary equity shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid
- o - 65,013

Shares bought back

Consequent to the approval of the Board of Directors vide meeting dated 24 August, 2016, the Holding Company offered for buy back of equity shares from
its shareholders. On closure of buy back 65,013 equity shares were bousght back by the Holding Company at the offer price of Rs.10,082.58 per share.

Other equity

Reserves on Amalgamation
Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year
Closing balance

Capital Redemption Reserve

Opening balance
Add:Addition during the year
Closing balance

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
21,606 21,606
1,606 21,606
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
132 132
132 132




SFO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021
(Amount in INR akhs, unless otherwise stated)

€. Capitai Reserve
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening Balance 7,986 7,986
Add:Addition during the year - -
Closing balance 7986 7,986

D. Capital Subsidy
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening Balance 249 249
Add:Addition during the year - -
Closing balance 249 249

E. Capital Investment Subsidy
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening Balance 20 20
Add:Addition during the year o g
Closing balance 20 20

F. Securitles Premium
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening Balance 1,178 1,178
Add:Addition during the year @ =
Closing batance 1,178 1,178

G. Surplusi(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening balance 24,334 17,869
Add:Profit for the year 3,74 7,590
Add: Forex Gain/ {loss) on translation of foreign currency for integral operations 42 T (755)
Less: Re-measurement {gain)/loss on post employment {10) 370)
benefit obligation (net of tax)

Closing balance 28,100 24,334

H. investments FYTOC] Reserve on equity instruments
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening balance 260 345
-Fair valuation changes for the year (Net of tax affect) 50 {85)
Closing balance 310 260

Forefgn Currency Translation Reserve
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening balance -0 (287)
- Movement during the year (84) {468)
- Reversal on Losing Controlling Interest - 755

Closing balance (84) (0)

3. Capital Reserve on Consclidation

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Opening balance 126 958
- Movement during the year 10) {832)
Closing balance 126 126
Total other equity(A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H++J) 59,623 55,891

As at As at

K. Non-Controlling interests 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Balance as per last financial statements . 9

Add: Share of profit for the year {including OCI}
Less: Adjustments to non controlling interest - (9)




SFO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financisi Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat
19 Non-current bortowings 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

secured
Term loan
From Bank
INR bank loan* 7,531 3,365
AED bank loan** 8 15

7,539 3,380
Less: Amount disclosed under the hear "Other financial 1,936 869
tiabilities® (Refer note 23) 4
Total non current maturities of long term borrowings 5,603 2,511

Terms of repayment

* Inctudes tndian Rupee loans of Rs. 6,089.05 lakhs (March 31, 2020; Rs.1,982.65 lakhs) barrowed from banks carrying interest in the range of 8.90% - 10.25%
p.a (March 31, 2020: 10.37% - 13.01% p.a). Foreign currency loan of Rs. 847.81 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.1,162.03 lakhs) barrowed from bank carrying
interest at the rate of LIBOR + 3.25%. Vehicle loans are repayable in monthly instalments, each ranging from Rs. 0.02 lakhs to Rs. 4.09 lakhs (March 31,
2020: Rs 0.02 lakhs to 2.91 lakhs) atong with interest. The toans are secured by hypothecation of the vehicles financed, The term loans avalled ather than
for vehicle loans are repayable in quarterly installments.

* Includes Indian Rupee loans of Rs. 210 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.270 lakhs) borrowed from M/s Tata Capital Financial Services Private Limited carrying
interest in the range of 12.50% p.a (March 31, 2020: 12.50% p.a). The loans are secured by hypothecation of the fixed assets and current assets of the
company. The term loans availed are repayable in quarterly instatiments.

* Includes Indian Rupee loan of Rs.8.30 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.10.27 lakhs) borrowed from banks carrying interest in the range of 10.50 % p.a (March 31,
2020: 10.50% p.a). The loans are repayable in 60 monthly instalments, of Rs. D.24 takhs (March 31, 2020: Rs 0.24 lakhs; } along with interest, The loans are
secured by hypothecation of the vehicles financed.

~=~ Includes loan of AED 42,750 (March 31, 2020: AED 74,588) borrowed from banks. The loans are repayable in 36 hty \ments, of AED 2,976 (March
31, 2020: AED 2,976) along with interest. The loans are secured by hypothecation of the vehicles financed.

Employee benefit obligations
Long term Short term
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 40)

Provision for gratuity (funded) 568 517 34 32

Provision for leave encashment {unfunded) 1,480 1,239 38 31
Total Employee benefit obligations 2,048 1,756 72 64
Short -term borrowings 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Secured, from bank, term loan
Working Capitat Loans-INR  [Refer Note ({i} and ii}] 19,520 16,545
Working Capital Loans-USD 8,354 13,603
Working Capital Loans-EURO {Refer Note ()] 335 178
Bank Overdraft 63 4
Total short-term borrowings 28,272 30,330

Terms and conditions of loans

(1) The Holding Company has avafled working capital and Packing Credit Facilities from banks which are secured by hypothecation by way of pari passu first
charge on all current assets of the Company, bath present and future, including stock of goods, book debts and all other movable assets including docyment
of title to goods, and second pari passu charge on all fixed assets of the Campany, including immovable properties. The same is also secured by the personal
guarantee of the Managing Director, The toans are repayable on demand. The interest rates on the said loan varies from 5.90 % t0 11.85 ¥ p.a { 31-03-2020
15.90 % to 11.85 ¥ p.a)

{il) The Loan availed also includes a working capital demand loan availed from ICICI Bank Limited Secured by hypothecation by way of exclusive charge on
the current assets of the project related ta manufacturing of secure link Fiber Intrusion Proof System, baoth present and future and third parri passu charge
on all movable fixed assets of the Holding Company (excluding vehicle). The same is also secured by the personal guarantee of the Managing Director. The
interest rate on the safd loan &s 9.85 % per annum.

(Ill) Hypothecation by way of first charge of the entire goods, movables and other assets, both present and future and other assets including book debts,
outstanding monies, recefvables including receivables by way of cash assistance and/or cash incentives under Cash Incentfve Scheme or any other Scheme,
ctaims inctuding ctaims by way of refund of customs/excise duties under Duty Drawback Credit Scheme or any other Scheme, bitls, invaices, documents,
contracts, insurance policies, guarantees, engagements, securitfes, investments and rights on uncalled capital and all machinery present and future of such
form satisfactory to the Bank and second charge on fixed assets of the Group. Rate of Interest for INR toan :- 2.50% above SBI Base Rate effectively 12.90%
p.a. with monthly rests for the EPC Limits and Rate of Interest for EURO Loan :-6 months LIBOR plus 200 bps for the PCFC Limits




22

SFO Technologies Private Limited

Notes forming part of the £ lidated Financial § ts for the year ended on 31st March 2021

(Amaunt in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entemprises ( Refer Note : 42)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises*
Total trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Current maturity of long term loans
Other Payable

Payable to Employees

interest payable

Liabilities for capital goods

Total other financlal {iabilities

Other current tiabilitles

Statutory due payable

Advance from customer

Book Overdraft in Current Account with Banks
Total ather current tiabilities

Current tax liabilities

Current tax payable {net of Advance tax Rs.52 lakhs, March 31, 2020 Rs.50.07 lakhs)
Total current tax Habilitles

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2,206 3,411
35,223 40,072
37,429 43,483
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1,936 869
11 117
1,99 2,055
45 77
. 678 185
4,765 3,303
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
526 330
3,634 1,406
- 36
4,160 1,772
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
3,253 1,608
3,253 1,608




SFO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Armount n INR lakhs, urless otherwise stated)

For the Year ended
26 Revenue from operations 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from Contract with Customer
Sale of goods 1,52,178 1,63,782
Sale of services 7,859 7,972
Other operating revenue 5,897 7,143
Total revenue from operations 1,65,934 1,78,897
Disaggregated revenue information
Sale of products
Manufactured Goods
Etectronic,Radio Frequency & Sheet metat products 1,32,365 1,40,394
Fibre Optic Products 5,990 7,962
Wire Hamess and Cabte Assembties 7,726 9,336
Machining and Assembty 4,080 4,184
Tools & Moulds 2,017 1,906
1,52,178 1,63,782
Sale of services
- Software Maintenance and Development Services 7,859 7,972
7,859 7,972
27 Other income 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Dividend Income 9
Interest income
- on fixed deposits designated as amortized cost 101 102
- on loan to director 137 138
-on Others 77 692
Other non operating income 3 541
Interest incorne on security deposits 161 261
Gain on sate / disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 6 2
Liabilities written back 4 51
Total cther income 1,363 1,797
28 Cost of materfal consumed
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Inventory at the beginning of the year 39,137 31,680
Add: Purchases , freight inward and other charges 90,957 1,22,747
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 29,097 39,137
Total cost of raw materials consumed 1,00,997 1,15,290
29 Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work-in-progress
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Finished goods 4,222 2,660
-Work-in-progress 6,725 7,928
10,947 10,568
Less: Inventaries at the end of the year
-Finished goods 2,952 4272
-Work-in-progres 6,459 5,725
9,411 10,947
Net decrease/ {increase) 1,536 {359}
30 Employee benefits expense 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salarles, wages, boms and other allowances 23,979 26,364
Contribution to Provident Fund and ESI [Refer note 40 (a)] 841 23]
Gratuity and comp d ab P [Refer note 40 (b)) 251 17
Staff welfare expenses 524 58t
Total employee benefits expense 25,595 27,833
& 5
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~ SFO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the C \idated Financlai for the year ended on 3ist March 2021
{Amount i INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

31 Finance costs 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest on borrowing 4,053 4,871
interest on others 634 649
interest on delay in payment of taxes 47 1
Interest on detay in payment to MSME Units 30 14
Other Borrowing Cost 154 280
Interest Expense on lease liability 605 693
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation considered as Finance Cost 909 708
Total finance costs 6,432 7,216

32 Depreciation and amortization expense 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,254 3,033
Amortization of Intangibles 400 406
Amortisation of right of use assets 1,593 1,534
tess: Amortisation on intangibte assets capitalised {5} {12)
Total depreciation and amortization expense 4,242 4,961

33 Other expenses 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Consumption of Stores and Spares 3,840 2,873
Comumption of Packing Materials 280 336
Water and Electricity 1,661 1,773
Freight Charges 1,607 1,328
Factory Expense 969 1,986
Rates and Taxes 504 265
Lease Rent 75 319
Rent-Others 22 874
Bad Debts 290 9
Bank Charges 499 473
Donation 8 0

a nt e ;
(a} Building 203 168
{b) Plant and Machinery 713 728
{c) Others 627 591
Engineering Support Charges 525 209
CSR Expense™ (refer note below) 34 36
Factoring Charges - 106
Insurance Charges 204 423
Travel and conveyance §33 1,308
Discount 13 108
Selling Expense 114 106
Printing & Stationery 55 53
C ion, broadband and i 151 270
Office expenses 113 549
Legal and professionat charges" (refer note below) 8,392 3,198
Advertisement. 182 328
Software Expense 348 517
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) {1,350} 300
Pravision for Doubtfut Debtors 365 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,204 1,093
Total other expenses 22,178 20,345
“Note : Legal and P | Charges includes auditors 1t
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

As auditor:

Statutory audit 14 14
Total 14 14
**Note:Group has spend on CSR expense in following manner:

Activity 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

[Measures for reducing tnequalities faced by socially and economically 34 38

|backward groups




SFO Technologles Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
34 Deferred tax lability
{A) Deferred tax relates to the following:

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assats
On amortisation of security deposits (109} 106
On amortsation of lease liability 1,614 1,699
On remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 664 381
©On proviston for doubtful debts 128 -
2,297 2,186
Deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant and equipment 1,380 1,475
On Right of Use assets 1,755 1,633
On Goodwill 1,355 726
On Other intangible Assets 78 265
Cn accrued Interest 60 3
4,628 4,102
Deferred tax expense / (income) 415 824
Add: Opening Deferred tax lability 1,916 1,092
Less: Deferred tax asset not recognized O =
Deferred tax Liability 2,331 1,916
{B) Recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax Hability
As on As oh
Balance sheet March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred tax asset - -
Deferred tax liabilities (2,330) (1,916)
Deferred tax assets/ (lfabilities), net (2,330) (1,916)
(C} Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liahilities) (net):
For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance as of April 1 {1,916) {1,092)
Tax liability recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss (414) (824)
Closing balance as at March 31 (2,330) {1,916)
(D) Deferred tax income / (exp } to be ized in S of Profit and Loss 414) (824)
(E] Income tax expense For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- Current tax charge 2,307 1,465
- Deferred tax charge / {income) 414 824
income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 2,721 2,289
(F) Income tax expense charged to OCl F:::\::rz;';fd F:::; g:?;;;:“
Unrealised gain on FYTOC! equity securities 25 {46)
Net gain on remeasurements of defined benefit ptans (5) {199)
income tax charged to OC| 20 (245}
For the Year anded For the Year ended
Reccacitiation ofjcax charge March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit before tax 6,455 9,869
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable 2,256 3,448
Tax effects of:
- Tax Effect on Non Deductible Expenses 268 787
- Tax Effect on Weighted Deduction for Research and Development 0 (522)
- Tax Effect on Exemption u/s 10AA of the Income Tax Act {5} {52)
« Tax Effect corresponking to loss entities ] 452)
- Others m (1,165)
Income tax expense 2,741 2,044




SFO Technalogles Private Limited
Motes forming part of the C lidated Financlal S
[Amount in INR takhs, unless otherwise stated)

35 Earnings/ Loss pershare
The foltowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Net profit for calcutation of basic/diluted EPS
Welghted average number of equity shares in calcutating basic/diluted EPS

Basic Earming per share (INR)
Diluted Eanning per share (INR)

36 Segment Reporting

for the year ended on 31st March 2021

For the Year For the Year ended
ended March 31, 2020
3,734 7,580
9,15,589 9,15,589
408 228
408 828

The Group's operations predominantly relates to one bissiness segment, viz, Manufacture of Electronic Goods and Services . Accordingly, no further disclosures, other than those

already included in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, are required. The informatian about geographical areas {s as below:

(A) Revenye from operatfons
India
United States of America
Europe
Middle £ast
Others

(B) Capital Expenditure
India
United States of America
Europe
Middle East
Others

(C) Non-current asset
India
Qutside india (specify names, if material)

37 Contingent Linbilitles

(a) Guarantees
Corporate Guarantee issued to secure the term loan and working capital outstanding sanctioned by M/s Tata
Capital Finandial Services Private Limited to the Group.

{b) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debis®
(i) Service tax demands pending fn appeals
[Inctuding interest of as on 31t March 2021 ¥645.15 Lakhs (31-03-2020: 645.15 Lakhs) and excluding penalty
Rs.348.10 Lakhs (31-03-2020: Rs.34B.10 Lakhs)).
{1} VAT Pemands, pending in appeals.
(iH) Income Tax Demands, pending in appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeals)

{Iv) Pending Litigation with M/s IVRCL Limited in connection with the contract for construction
of building at Nest Hi-Tek Park SEZ.

-Service Tax demand pafd under Protest as on March 31, 2021 s Rs. 1,696.86 lakhs { March 31, 2020- Rs.1,696.86 lakhs)

VAT demand patd under Protest as on March 31, 2021 is Rs. 73.10 lakhs ( March 31, 2020 - Rs. 73.10 lakhs}

*Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determinable anly on receipt of judgments / declsions pending at various forums / authoritles.

38 The expenses for the year includes research and development cost of Rs. 2,068.45 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - Rs. 2,770.97 lakhs}

For the Year For the Year ended
ended March 31, 2020
Amount {INR) Amount (INR)
90,826 72,543
43,793 9,74
16,117 0,224
2,600 6,243
12,598 10,145
1,65,934 1,78,897
For the Year For the Year ended
ended March 31, 2020
Amount (INR) Amount. @NR)
2,885 2,357
15 473
22 9
R 19
7 114
3,100 2,977
For the Year For the Year ended
ended March 31, 2020
‘Amount (INR) Amount (INR}
32,15 36,248
4,013 796
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
740 870
1,697 1,697
56 238
152 152
367 367
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SFO Technologles Private Limited
Notes forming part of the C Hidated Fi jal S for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Amount In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Leases
Operating leases
{i) Non-cancetiable operating leases

The Group has entered into operating lease. The leases are non-cancellable and renewable after the primary lease perfod based on mutual agreement between the parties. The
details of the lease arrangement are as follows:
Future minimom lease payments;

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Rental expense relating to operating leases 136 338

Pursuant to the adoption of Ind AS 16, leased assets are presented as a separate line item in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020 see Note 4B

Employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
During the year, the Group has recognized the following inthe of Profit and Loss -
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund and Emptoyee 5tate Insurance (Refer note 32) B41 71
Defined benefit plans
Gratuity payable to employees, which is funded wth Life Insurance Corporation of India
Long Term Compensated Absence
Actuarial assumptions As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate (per annum) 6.20% 6.40%
Rate of increase in Salary 5.00% 5.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees {years) :;3: m:; Imlm;‘dm UMJ 5
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Employee’s gratuity fund
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 549 249
Interest cost o 7
Current service cost 139 166
Benefits paid {130} {351)
Actiariat (gain}/ loss on obligations (67} 478
Present value of cbligation at the end of the year* 602 549
“Included in provision for employee benefits {Refer note 20)
p r ized fn the of Profit and Loss ! s gratuity fund
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current service cost 139 166
interest cost 110 7
Actuarfal {gain) / loss on obligations (67) 477
Total exp r ed in the Profit and Loss* 133 650

“Included in Employee benefits expense {Refer Note 30) and Finance cost (Refer Note 31). Actuarfal loss of Rs. 15 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: 370 Lakhs } Is included in other
comprehensive fncome.

Assets and Habilitles recognized in the Balance Sheet Employee’s gratuity fund
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of funded obligation as at the end of the year 602 549
Unrecognized actuarial (gains)/tosses -
Unfunded net asset / (liabifity) recognized in Batance Sheet* 602 549
*“Included in provision for employee benefits (Refer note 26)
Expected cantribution to the fund in the next year As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gratuity 382 373
A quantitative sensitivity analysls for significant assumption as at 31 March 2020 1s as shown below:
Asat As at
Impact on defined benefit obligation March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate
0.5% increase 75) 72)
0.5 decrease 78 75

Rate of increase In salary
0.5% increase 78 76
0.5X decrease {751 k1)




5FO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the lidated Fi cial for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Amount in INR Laldrs, unless otherwise stated)

vil)  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation Employee’s gratuity fund
As at As at
! Year March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Apr 2019- Mar 2020 - -
Apr 2020- Mar 2021 89 419
Apr 2021- Mar 2022 447 3n
Apr 2022- Mar 2023 I 346
Apr 2023 onwards 3,466 3,023

41 Refated Party Disclosures
A Details of related parties (As identified by Management and relied upon by Auditors):

Person controtling the Group: Mr, Javad K. Hassan
Key Management Personnel - Managing Director: Mr. N. Jehangir

Enterprises under the cantrol of the Person controlling the Group:
Nest Technologies Corporation, USA
Nestrides, Japan
JKH Associates LLC, USA
SFO Tech tnc. USA (Subsidiary of the company till 30.03.2020)
Qual-Pro Corporation (Enterprise under indirect controt of company till 30.03.2020)
£ Ceil Technologles, USA
NTC Softech India Private Limited
Javad K Hassan Consultancy Private Limited
Javad K Hassan Assocfates F2 Co.
JAVAD K HASSAN ASSQCIATES LLC
Saba Powderdex Private Limited
Parnitha Holdings
ECell Healthcare Private Limited
Allied Network Solutions India Private Limited

Enterprises under the control of Managing Directors NeST Technology Enabled Services Private Limited
NeST Infra Soft Limited
Nest Realties India Private Limited
NJ Business Corporation
HeST Foods & Beverages Corporation
Nenmany Agro Mills Private Limited
NeST Research & Devel t Centre ed Society)
Naz Rice and Foods Private Limited
Q Life Consumer Products Private Limited
Royal Malabar Foods Private Limited
NeST Agro Foods (Proprietorship)
N J Enterprises {Proprietorship}
Nest Institute of Fibre Optics Technologies Private Limited
SFO Technologies Solutions Private Limited
Mest Conectivity Corporation
Nest Cormectivity Solutions Private Limited
Nest Connectivity Solutions Pte Limited
SFO Technologies Pe, Singapore
Ray-Hans Cables and Magnetics Private Limited
Ray-hans Technologies Private Limited
Ray-Hans Luminaries Private Limited
Photon Data Links Private Limited
Green House Cardamom Marketing India Private Limited
NEID Engineering & Infrastructure Devetopment Private Limited

of Key 1 Mrs. Nishi Jehangir, Wife of Mr. M. Jehangir
Mrs. Jehangir, hter of N. g
Mr. Althaaf Jehangir, Son of Mr. N. Jehangir

(B) Details of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business for the year ended:

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(i) Enterprises under the control of the Person controlting the Group

Purchase of goods/setvices 139 136

Safe of goods/services 1,368 3,581
{l) Key Management Personnet - Managing Director

Loans given 2,669 2,979

Loans repaid 2,565 3,349

Remuneration paid 600 600




SFO Technologles Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ci lidated Fi; iad far the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Amount in INR Lakhs, untess otherwise stated)

{v) Enterprises under the control of Managing Director

Purchase of goods/services 592 635

Sale of goods/services 3,053 3,584
(vi) Relative of Key Management Personnel

Purchase of goods/services [ 6

Remuneration paid 72 6
(€) Amount due to/from related party as on:

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
() Enterprises under the control of the Person controlling the Group

Trade receivables s97 560

Loans and advances 1,855 =

Trade payables 46 41

Advance to Supplier - -
i) Key M P { - Managing Director

Loans and advances 2,201 2,247
(fii) Enterprises under the control of Managing Director

Trade recetvables 2,480 3,383

Trade payables 1,323 1,254

Advance to Supplier " 53
(iv) Relative of Key F 1

Advance to Suppltier 17 17

Terms and conditions of transactions with related es
Loans and Advances by the Group are repayable on or before March 31, 2023. All transactions with related parties have been carvied out on arms length basts.

42 Details of dues to micro and smalt enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop (MSMED) Act, 2006

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

any supplier as at end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due ta micro and small enterprises 2,176 3,400
- interest due 30 11

2,106 3,411

The amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the R .
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the perfod of delay In making
payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 30 4
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each 0 20
accounting year (current year charge)

The amount of further interest remnaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until sich date when the interest dues as above are
actuzlly paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disaltowance asa
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The information given above is to the extent such parties have been Identified by the Group on the basis of information disclosed by the suppliers.
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(a)

SFO Technologies Private Limited
Notes forming part of the € \dated Financial for the year ended on 31st March 2021
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Fair values of financial assets and financial llabllities

The fair value of other current financiat assets, cash and cash equival trade receivables || vrade bles, short-term b gs and ather t liabilities
the carrying because of the short term nature of these financial instruments.
The amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR} of non-current financial assets consisting of security and term deposits are not significantly different from the carrying
Financfal assets that are neither past due nor impalred include cash and cash equival , security o term deposits, and other fil | assets.
Carrying values of non-cuirent security deposits and non-current term deposits are not significant and therefore the impact of falr value is not considered for above disclosure.
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-curvent financial assets
Investments 4,267 4,349
Loans 4,057 3,662
Other financial asset 1,836 961
Current Financial Assets
Investments 61 49
Trade receivables 41,467 29,086
Cash and cash equivalents 6,299 4,817
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 2,525 1,308
Other financial assets 2,103 2,998
Non-current financial labilities
Borrowings 5,603 2,51
Lease liabilities 3,469 3,436
Other financial labitities .
ol financial liabilities
Borrowings 28,272 30,230
Lease liabitities 1,313 1,336
Trade payables 37,430 43,483
Other financial tiabitities 4,765 3,303
Fair value hierarchy
The following [s the hy for d and disclosing the fair value of fi 1 by technique:

«Levet 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities.

sLevel 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Hability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
aLevel 3 - Inputs for the assets or Uabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Mo financial assets/Liabitities have been valued using level 1 fair value measurements.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair vatue measurement hlerarchy of assets

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Einanclal assets measired at FYTOC)
Level 1 (Quoted price in active markets)
tnvestments in bonds FYTOCI 61 49
b in equity FVTOCH 134 77
Leval 2 (Valuation techniques with cbservable inputs) .
I in equity at FVTOC! 213 2
Level 3
Investment in Other affiliates 3,919 3,782
Investment 1n in unsecured loan of Other affftfates - 279
Trade receivables 41,467 29,086
Loans 4,057 3,662
Cash and cash equivalents 6,299 4,818
Bank batances other than cash and cash equivalents 2,528 1,308
Fixed deposit accounts with maturity for more than 12 months from balance sheet date. 706 .
Security Deposits 3,192 2,417

easurement tHes:
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Levet 3
Bosrowings (non-current) 5,603 2,511
Borrewings (current) 28,272 30,330
Current maturity of long term loans 1,936 869
Trade payables 37,430 43,433
Other financial abilities 4,765 3,303
The casrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, frade receivables, fixed trade payables, other payables and short-term borrowings are considered to be the same
as their fair values. The fair values of b Uability of c ble pr ¢« shares and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted

using a curent lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable nputs including own and counterparty
credit risk,
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Notes forming part of the C: tidated Fi clal for the year ended on 31st March 2021
{Amotnt in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

45 F risk bjectives and polick

The Group Is exposed to various financial risks, These rishs are categorized into market risk, credit risk and Uquidity risk. The Group's risk management s coordinated by the
Board of Directors and focuses on s=curing long term and short term cash flows. The Group does not engage in trading of financial assats for speculative purposes.

(A) Market risk

Market risk fs the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instnament witl fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currericy risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and
derivative financial instruments.

{i) Intarest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flaws of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates retates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

“The Group menages its interest rate risk by having a batanced portfolia of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

interest rate sensitivity

The foll table d the ivity to a bly possible chiange in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings. With all other variables hetd
constant, the Group's profit before tax fs affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as foltows:
For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
W increase % decrease Rincreass R dacresse
Impact on profit/(loss) before tax (352) 352 (335) 335

{ii} Foretgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's
expostre to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates retates primartly to the Group’s foregin cumency payable, receivable and advances.The Group does not have foreign
currency hedge in respect of its foreign currency EEFC batance as on March 31, 2021 Rs. 534.76 takhs (March 31, 2020- Rs. 534.76 lakhs), Receivable Rs. 20,892.58 lakhs as on
march 31, 2021 {March 31, 2020- Rs. 20,892.58 lakhs), Advances to supptier Rs 4,118.47 lakhs March 31, 2021 {March 31, 2020 Rs. 4,118.47 lakhs), Loans Rs. 14,918.75 lakhs as
on March 31, 2021 (March -2020- Rs. 14,918.75 takhs), Advances to Related Party Rs. 5§33.26 as on March 31, 2021 {March 31, 2020 - Rs. $33.26 lakhs], Payables Rs. 25,064.03
lakhs as an March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 Rs. 25,064.03 fakhs), Capital Advances Rs. 54.67 lakhs as on March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020- Rs.54.67 lakhs), Advances from
Customer Rs. 476.40 lakhs as on March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020- Rs. 476.40 lakhs).The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate on profit or loss of
the Group is as below:

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
% % % % decrease
tmpact on profit/{loss) before tax {164) 164 {141) 141
(B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on financiat ifac y default on fts cbligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises majorty
from trade recefvables and loans to related party. The Group does not expect any credit risk with respect to other financiat assets i.e. security deposits, bank deposits, etc.
The management reviews trade ivables and loans to d on a periodic basis and take Y quired. The Group creates allowance for alt

unsecured trade receivaties based on lifetime expected credit loss. The summary of changes in allowance for recelvables / loans {5 as below:

Trade receivables Loan to a related party
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - -
Allowance recognised during the year 365 - - -
Balance at the end of the year 365 - - -
{C) Liquidity risk

The Group Tts liguidity recq in the short, medium and long term. This fs done by drawings up cash farecast for short term and long term needs. The Group
manage its liquidity risk In a manner so as to meet fts normat financial obligations without any significant delay or stress. Such risk i managed through ensuring operational
cash flow while at the same time fring ad cash and cash equivalent position. The management has arranged for diversified funding sources and adapted a policy
of assets with liquidity i “'.,,ﬁmnecaﬂ:ﬂwandummﬂlymareguhrbasis.Suplusfundsnutimmediate(yreqtﬂmdareinvatedlncemhﬁxcddeposi(wlidt

provide flexibility to liquidate. Besides, it generally has certain undrawn credit facitities which can be assessed as and when required; such credit facilities are reviewed at.

regular basis.

The following tables detail the Company’s remafning contractuat maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn
up based an the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principat cash flows. To the extent that interest flaws are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting petfod. The
contractual maturity is based on the eartiest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities:

Maturities
Upto 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years Above 3 years Total
st March, 2021
Hon-current borrowings - 2,339 2,205 1,059 5,603
Current borrowings 28,272 - - . 28,272
Trade payables 37,430 - - - 37,430
Other financial labdlity 4,765 - o o 4,765
Total 70,467 2,339 2,205 1,059 77,070
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B3 h, 2020
Non-current borrowings - 710 883 918 2,511
Current borrowings 30,330 - - - 30,330
Trade payables 43,483 o A - 43,483
Other financial liabitity 3,303 = - - 3,303
Total 77,116 710 883 918 79,627

46 Capitat management

For the purpose of the Company*s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders,
The primary abjective of the Group's capital fsto the shareholder value and to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going cancemn.

The Group has not distributed any dividend to its sharzholders. The Group capital using a gearing ratio, which 1s net debt divided by total capital. The Group includes
within net debt, all non-current and current borrowings reduced by cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. The Group manages the capital strcture and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes In economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Non-current borrowings & lease Uabilities 9,072 5,947
Current maturities of non-current borrowings and lease liabilities 3,248 2,205
Current borrowings 28,272 30,330
Less: Cash and cash eguivatents (6,299) 4,817
Less: Other bank balances {including non-current fixed deposit balances and other than restricted cash) 2,168) (387)
Mot debt 32,126 33,278
Equity share capital 516 916
Other equity 59,623 55,893
Total capital 60,538 56,808
Gearing ratio 53.07% 58.58%

No changes were made in the objectives, palicies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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Note -47 Additional Information required by Schedule #il

Summary of net assets, share in consolidated profit or loss and share in other comprehensive income

March 31, 2021
Net assets i, e. total assets Share in consolidated Share In consolidated other Share in consalidated total
minus total Habilities profit or loss comprehensive income comprehensive income
Asa%of Asa % of T S bt A
consolidated Amount consolidated  Amount co:;l!d:;:imtr Amount c‘:"”":::: ::'::‘l Amount
net assets net profit ‘pr omg
Parent company
SFO Technologles Private Limited 98% 59,433 95% 3,557 9% 39 7% 3,596
Subsidiaries - ndian
Nest Hi-Tek Park Private Limited 4% 2,223 -10% {357) 0% -10% (357)
Nest Digital Private Limited
{Formerly, Nest Information Technologies Private Ltd) % 2472 2 Eio 2% 4 L gl
Ray-hans Precision Tools Private Limited 1% B62 -15% {555) % S -15% (555)
ICAM Soliion Private Limited 2% 1,289 % 17 0% N 3% 17
Subsidiaty - Foreign
SFO Technologies Corporation, USA 1% 850 o% 8 o% - o% 8
Nest Information Technologles {Aus} Pty. Limited, Australia o% 3 [ {0) 0% - % [{i}]
Adjustment arising out of consolidation -11% {6,593) 0% 15 0% 84 -2% (68)
Associates - Foreign
Nest information Technologies LLC, UAE 0% = 4% 138 0% 4% 138
Tetal 100% 60,539 100% 3,733 ~94% 43 100% 3,890
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Note -47 Additional Information required by Schedule il

SFO Technologies Private Limited

Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Summary of net assets, share in consolidated profit or toss and share in other comprehensive income

for the year ended March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020
Net assets i.e. total assets Share In consolidated Share in consolidated other Share in consolidated total
minus total Habilities profit or loss comprehenslve income comprehensive income
Asa%of Amount Asa% of Amount Asa%of Amount AsaXof Amount
consotidated consolidated consolidated other consolidated totat
net assets net profit comprehensive comprehensive
Parent company
SFO Technologies Private Limited 98% 65,838 20% 3,013 A% (371) 109% 2,642
bsid ~ India
Nest Hi-Tek Park Private Limited 4% 2,175 ~15% {519) 0% . -21% {519)
Nest Digital Private Limited
{Formerly, Nest Information Technologies Private Ltd) ex 1650 i3 324 . 35) i) (Lo
Ray-hans Precision Tools Private Limited % 1,328 -15% (516) 3 (29) -22% (545)
1CAM Solution Private Limited % 1,148 9% 305 % (19 12% 285
Subsidiary - Forefgn
SFO Technologies Corporation, USA 1% 800 24% 798 1% @ 33% k|
Nest Information Technologies (Aus) Pty. Limited, Austratia [1;9 [1}] 0% 1) 0% [()] % (1)
Nest Technologfes LLC, Dman 0% 32) A% {32) o% 1 1% (32)
SFO Tech Inc, USA {with subsidiaries till 31-03-2020) 0% 35 -8% {278) 50% (462) -30% 739)
Adjustment arising out of consolidation -10% (6,142) i3 15 o B 23 15
Non contralling interest in all subsidiaries [+ . o 10 0% - 0% 10
ates - 1
Nest Information Technalogies LLC, UAE [ % 232 0% E 10% 232
Total 101% 56,807 100% 3,351 100% (924) 100% 2,427
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48 The World Health Organization announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and classified fts outbreak as a
pandemic on March 11, 2020, On March 24, 2020, the indian government announced a strict 21-day lockdown across the country to contain the spread of
the virus, which has been further extended till August 31, 2020. Also most of the regions in India have suffered second wave of coronavirus infections in
the year 2021 followed by regional lockdowns accross the country to contain the spread of virus. This pandemic and government response are creating
disruption 1n global supply chain and adversely impacting most of the industries which has resulted in global slowdawn.

The management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company's operations, financial perfermance and paosition as at and for the
year ended March 31, 2021 and has concluded that there is no impact which is required to be recognised in the financial statements. Accordingly, no
adjustments have been made to the financial statements (March 31, 2020: Rs Nil).

49 Previous year figures, unless otherwise stated are given within brackets and have been re-grouped and recast wherever necessary to be in conformity with
current year's disciosure

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
SFO Technologies Private Limited
CIN: U72900KL1990PTC005620
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Mana; Director Dire€tor Company Secretary
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